








June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 9

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
5:30 P.M., P.D.S.T., TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2019
ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

Jeff Dalling, Chairman of the City of Elko Planning Commission, called the meeting to order at
5:30 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Ian Montgomery
Jeff Dalling
John Anderson
Stefan Beck
Tera Hooiman
Gratton Miller

Excused: Evi Buell

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
John Holmes, Fire Marshal
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

May 7, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*** Motion: Approve the May 7, 2019 minutes as presented.

Moved by Tera Hooiman, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9

A. PUBLIC HEARING

1. Review, consideration, and possible action of Conditional Use Permit No. 4-19, filed
by Elko County School District, which would allow for the expansion of the current
Elko High School campus with the addition of a new building, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally north of the intersection of 11th Street and
College Avenue. (1297 College Avenue - APN 001-191-001 & 001-191-004).

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated May 20, 2019. Staff
recommended approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report. The Parcel
Map requirement is requested because the applicant has stated that they intend on combining the
two parcels into one parcel.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, had no comments.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, recommended approval as presented by the Planning Department.

John Holmes, Fire Marshal, had no comments.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, recommended approval, assuming that the off-street
parking doesn’t increase with the addition of the building. The City receives a lot of complaints
from the neighboring properties. He suggested that the applicant discuss that issue

Ms. Laughlin explained that the way that the campus has been fenced off; there is no access into
the campus from College Avenue. She stated that the last few times she drove by there was no
on-street parking being utilized.

Casey Kelly, Elko County School District, said they fenced the area off last summer and it hasn’t
been an issue this year. He also mentioned that they hadn’t received any complaints on the on-
street parking.

Commissioner Stefan Beck was curious if there was going to be a physics lab in the new
building.

Mr. Kelly said yes. There would be physics and science. They are trying to get as close to STEM
as they can.

***Motion: Conditionally approve Conditional Use Permit No. 4-19 subject to the
conditions in the City of Elko Staff Report dated May 20, 2019, listed as follows:

1. The permit is granted to the applicant Elko County School District.
2. The permit shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only to the specific use

and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the Planning
Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9

that all zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the
permit have been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be
transferable and shall run with the land, whereupon the maintenance or special
conditions imposed by the permit, as well as compliance with other provisions of the
zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the property owner.

3. A variance for the College Ave. street line setback for the principal building is
required to be approved prior to issuing of a building permit. All conditions of VAR
1-19 to be met prior to occupancy of the building.

4. Slope stabilization will be required on all slope areas.
5. A Parcel Map for the consolidation of the two parcels be approved and recorded

prior to issuing a building permit for the new building.
6. CUP 4-19 to be recorded with the Elko County Recorder within 90 days after the

commencement of the construction of the new building.

Commissioner Montgomery’s findings to support the motion was the proposed
development is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The
proposed conditional use permit meets Objectives 3 & 8 of the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan. The proposed development is in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The proposed
development conforms with the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan. The site is
suitable for the proposed use. The proposed development is in conformance with the City
Wellhead Protection Program. The proposed use is consistent with surrounding land uses.
The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-2-8 PQP, Public-Quasi, Public with
the approval of the Conditional Use Permit and Variance 1-19 for street line setback
reduction. Development under the proposed conditional use will not adversely impact
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc. or pose a dance to human health and safety. The parcel is not located
within a designated Special Flood Hazard Area. The proposed development is in
conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-2-18, and 3-8 of the Elko City Code with the
approval of the variance for street line setback that is associated with the CUP.

Moved by Ian Montgomery, Seconded by Tera Hooiman.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

2. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 1-19, filed by Elko
County School District for a reduction of the required setback from any Street Line
from 59.25’ to 20’ on the College Avenue Street Line, within a PQP (Public, Quasi-
Public) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally north of the intersection of 11th Street and
College Avenue. (1297 College Avenue - APN 001-191-001 & 001-191-001).

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated May 18, 2019. Staff recommended
conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Ms. Rambo had no comments



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 9

Mr. Thibault recommended approval as presented.

Mr. Holmes had no comments or concerns.

Mr. Wilkinson had no comments or concerns. He thought a general finding for granting
variances for the school district was the limitations in land, a growing population of students, and
they need new facilities to accommodate that. He thought if the Commission wanted to consider
a finding like that it could be beneficial. There are some very specific circumstances that are
listed, but the bottom line is that that’s where the high school is and they only have so much land
available to work with.

Chairman Dalling thought that was a good idea. He thought it was important to add that the
overall extenuating circumstance is that it’s the high school, they have to build, and they are land
locked. He thought that would help their case more.

Ms. Laughlin asked the Commission to make one change to the staff recommended Condition
No. 2 to scratch out the Parcel Map Application number, as the Planning Department has not
received that Parcel Map Application yet. .

***Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 1-19 subject to the condition in the City of
Elko Staff Report dated May 18, 2019, with a modification to Condition 2 listed as follows:

1. Approval of CUP 4-19.
2. A Parcel Map to combine APNs 001-191-001 & 001-191-004 is to be approved,

recorded and all conditions satisfied.

Commissioner Beck’s findings to support the motion were that the proposed variance is in
conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan. The property is located
within the Redevelopment Area and meets the goals and objectives of the plan. The
property will have street frontage on all four sides, with the consolidation of the two parcels
into one. Approval of VAR 1-19 is required to be in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-
8. The property as developed with the addition of the proposed building does not exceed
the thirty-five percent of the net site area lot coverage. Approval of Variance 1-19 in
conjunction with approval of the parcel map to consolidate the two parcels into one will
bring the proposed new development into conformance with Section 3-2-8 of City Code.
The special circumstance is directly related to the property as it is developed as the only
high school in the City of Elko. It is somewhat land locked and with a growing population,
it requires expansion of its classroom facilities. The special circumstance of a fully
developed property with several legal non-conforming issues. This circumstance does not
generally apply to other properties in the district. The granting of the variance will not
result in material damage or prejudice to other properties in the vicinity, nor be
detrimental to the public interest, health, safety, and general welfare. The granting of the
variance is directly related to the zoning of the property and will not impair the intent or
purpose of the zoning and will not change the use of the land or zoning classification. The
granting of the variance will not impair natural resources. The Planning Commission
realizes that there is limited space at the present time for high school expansion, so they



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9

want to do everything they can to allow for the expansion of the high school and to support
growth and education in Elko County.

Moved by Stefan Beck, Seconded by Gratton Miller.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

3. Review, consideration, and possible action on Variance No. 2-19, filed by David &
Juliane Ernst for a reduction of the required exterior side yard setback from 15’ to
4.5’ and the required interior side yard setback from 5.5’ to 1.1’ for a residence in an
R (Single-Family and Multi-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located generally on the northeast side of 3rd Street,
approximately 36’ southeast of Pine Street. (604 3rd Street- APN 001-224-009)

Ms. Laughlin went over the City of Elko Staff Report dated May 21, 2019. Staff recommended
conditional approval with the findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report.

Ms. Rambo had no comments.

Mr. Thibault stated that the Engineering Department recommended approval. He had one
concern that just came to mind. The applicant submitted an application, yesterday, for a vacation
of 9 feet along the 3rd Street property line. His questions was if they allow for 4.5’ exterior side
yard setback, does that mean they can build to within 4.5’ of the new property line in the future.
Or, are they then required 15 feet, back to the original setback requirement, which would put
them out of conformance again? Mr. Thibault asked if Mr. Wilkinson had any thought on that.

Mr. Wilkinson said if the property line changes they can build out to that setback at some future
date if they desire. We are granting a variance today based on existing conditions. There is no
guarantee that the vacation will happen. If property line changes and they want to expand, they
would be able to do that, as long as they are meeting the setback on the exterior yard.

Mr. Thibault asked if it was the setback of 4.5 feet.

Mr. Wilkinson said no, they would have to meet the Code.

Mr. Thibault asked if it was the setback of 15 feet.

Mr. Wilkinson said that was correct.

Mr. Thibault pointed out that the existing building wouldn’t meet 15 feet.

Mr. Wilkinson said they wouldn’t be able to expand that direction on the home.

Mr. Thibault asked if the existing building would still be conforming.

Ms. Laughlin said yes, because the variance would be approved prior to the vacation.



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9

Mr. Holmes had no comments or concerns.

Mr. Wilkinson wanted to back up to Mr. Thibault’s comment. He asked if a variance would be
recorded. (No) He thought the Commission should condition this application that it is 4.5’ if the
property line is not adjusted, and it would be ‘X’ amount if the property line is adjusted. That
way, if the property line is adjusted you will still have a conforming property.

Mr. Thibault said they could say 4.5 from the current location of the property line. They could
adjust it.

Mr. Wilkinson said if they did 4.5, and the property line adjusts they could move out. He thought
by granting this variance they should condition it 4.5’ based on the property line of record today,
or the variance is granted for 4.5’ plus 9’, which would be 13.5’ if a future vacation of the
roadway is approved. He thought that should be the variance that is granted.

Chairman Jeff Dalling asked if there was any discussion. He thought Mr. Wilkinson had a pretty
good point.

Commissioner Tera Hooiman asked if they were conditionally approving the 4.5’ right now, not
13.5’.

Mr. Wilkinson said it would be an “or”. Mr. Wilkinson suggested that the Commission modify
their motion to say 4.5’ based on property lines of record today, which is June 4, 2019; or grant a
variance up to 13.5’ if a portion of 3rd Street is vacated. That way when the street is vacated, the
property owner will still have a variance and they will still have legal conforming property based
on the variance.

*** Motion: Conditionally approve Variance No. 2-19 subject to the condition in the City
of Elko Staff Report dated May 21, 2019, with the addition of a condition, listed as follows:

Planning Department:

1. Compliance with all staff recommendations.
2. Commencement within one year and completion within eighteen (18) months.
3. Conformance to plans approved as a part of the variance.
4. Subject to review in two (2) years if determined necessary by the planning commission.

Building Department:

1. If approved the following shall apply:
 All walls within 5 feet of property line are required to have a fire-resistance

rating. This shall be a 1 hour rating tested in accordance with ASTM E 119 or UL
263 with exposure from both sides. The projection or roof overhang shall have a
fire-resistance rating of 1 hour on the underside if located greater than 2 feet or
less than 5 feet from the property line. Roof projections or overhangs are not
allowed within 2 feet of a property line. Openings less than 3 feet to property line
are not allowed. Openings up to 25% maximum of wall area from 3 feet to 5 feet
of property line are allowed. These requirements are as per Table R302.1(1) 2009



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9

International Residential Code. And table R302.1 of Elko city amended building
codes.

Public Works Department:

1. Applicant must provide required public improvements along 3rd Street. This can be
done in conjunction with the building permit.

Planning Commission:

1. Exterior side yard setback reduction is approved for 4.5’ based on the lot of record on
June 4, 2019, or 13.5’ if 9.00’of 3rd Street is vacated.

Commissioner Hooiman’s findings to support the motion were that the proposed variance
is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan and is consistent with
existing land uses in the immediate vicinity. The proposed variance is consistent with the
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The property is not located within the
Redevelopment Area and consideration of the plan is not required. The proposed variance
is consistent with City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan. The property does not conform to
Section 3-2-4 of City Code. Approval of the variance application is required to bring the
property into conformance with Code. A single lot or parcel of land of record in the office
of the County Recorder as of the effective date of the City Subdivision Ordinance
(December 9, 1975), and which does not meet minimum requirements for lot area, lot width
or lot depth shall be considered a buildable lot for one single-family dwelling. Therefore,
the minimum lot width of 60’ is not required based on this exception. The developed
property does not meet side setback requirements stipulated in Section 3-2-5(G) R – Single
Family and Multiple Family Residential. The structure encroaches into both the interior
side yard and exterior side yard setback areas. Approval of the variance application is
required to bring the property into conformance with Code. The property does not
conform to Section 3-2-17 of City Code. Development of the required parking areas will be
required as part of the building permit approval. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the
applicant has demonstrated that the existing structure has been in place for over 24 years
and it appears the structure predates the current setbacks stipulated in code and
encroaches into the current stipulated setbacks. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the
applicant has demonstrated that his circumstance prevents the applicant from obtaining
building permits to modernize the structure depriving the applicant full use of the
structure. In accordance with Section 3-2-22, the applicant has demonstrated that the
property has unique circumstances based on the fact that the main structure already
encroaches into both side yard setback areas and there is some significant topographic
issues, namely slope, effecting the property. Granting of the variance will not result in
material damage or prejudice to other properties in the vicinity. This finding is based on
the fact that the existing structure has been in this same location for over 100 years and the
small additions will not extend beyond the existing exterior walls. Granting of the variance
will not substantially impair the intent or purpose of the zoning ordinance. Single family is
listed as a principal use in the underlying zone. Granting of the variance will not impair
natural resources. The parcel is not located within a designated Special Flood Hazard
Area.



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9

Moved by Tera Hooiman, Seconded by Stefan Beck.

*Motion passed unanimously. (6-0)

II. REPORTS

A. Summary of City Council Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that the Planning Department had been very quiet on the City
Council Meetings.

Ms. Rambo reported that the City Council continued table the Great Basin Estates Phase
3 Final Plat. She was trying to find a way to get it approved. There was a public utility
easement for NV Energy that was approved, as well as the Orchard Cove Preliminary
Plat.

B. Summary of Redevelopment Agency Actions.

Ms. Laughlin reported that the Redevelopment Agency had a meeting recently. They
approved the Storefront Grant Program Applicants, there were two applications. The
approved the continuation of the Grant program to expend remainder of this year’s
funds. They have extended that. They also approved the next project for the Downtown
Corridor, which will be the block ends for 4th, 5th, and 6th Streets.

C. Professional articles, publications, etc.

1. Zoning Bulletin

D. Miscellaneous Elko County

E. Training

Ms. Laughlin said there was a one page flyer included in the packet for this month’s
training

Ms. Laughlin also reminded the Commissioner’s that the meeting next month will be
on July 2nd, and to remind the Planning staff if there would be any absences.

Commissioner Hooiman informed the Commission that she would be absent for the
July Meeting.

Commissioner Beck also informed the Commission that he would be absent for the
July Meeting.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.



June 4, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Planning Commission reserves the right to
combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jeff Dalling, Chairman Tera Hooiman, Secretary



Agenda Item # I.A.1 

Created on 6/11/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible recommendation to City Council for Rezone No. 

2-19, filed by Bailey & Associates LLC, for a change in zoning from PQP (Public, 

Quasi-Public) to R1 (Single Family Residential) zoning district, approximately 8.02 

acres of property, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  July 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: PUBLIC HEARINGS,  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The applicant recently purchased the property from the 

Elko County School District and is requesting the zone change in conjunction with a 

Tentative Map submittal for Cambridge Estates Subdivision.  
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  

 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which approves Rezone No. 2-19 based on facts and findings as presented 

in Staff Report dated June 11, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated June 11, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Bailey & Associates. LLC 

780 West Silver Street #104 

Elko, NV 89801 

jbaileype@gmail.com 

 

 

 





Page 1 of 5

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: June 11, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: July 2, 2019
APPLICATION NUMBER: Rezone 2-19
APPLICANT: Bailey & Associates LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Zone amendment from PQP to R1 associated

with the subdivision of property, Cambridge
Estates Subdivision

ADDITIONAL APPLICATIONS: Tentative Map 7-19

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



REZONE 2-19
Bailey & Associates LLC
APN: 001-660-041

Page 2 of 5

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-660-041

PARCEL SIZE: 8.02 acres

EXISTING ZONING: PQP- Public, Quasi-public

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
 The property is surrounded by:

 North: Residential in Elko County / Developed
 West: Residential in Elko County / Developed
 South: Single Family Residential (R) / Developed
 East: Single Family Residential (R) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
 The area is currently undeveloped.
 The area has moderately sloping.
 The area is accessed from Celtic Way.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5 Residential Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-21  Amendments
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

BACKGROUND:

1. The property is owned by Bailey & Associates LLC.
2. The rezone includes all of APN 001-660-041
3. The area fronts Celtic Way.
4. City utilities are located in the immediate vicinity.
5. Other non-city utilities are located in the immediate area.



REZONE 2-19
Bailey & Associates LLC
APN: 001-660-041

Page 3 of 5

6. The application for rezone is based on an application for subdivision of property. As
such, the rezone application must comply with section 3-3-5(A) Zoning Amendments.

7. Planning Commission and City Council took action to eliminate the continuation of El
Armuth Drive from Celtic Way north to Sagecrest Drive.  El Armuth is not a dedicated
right-of-way and therefore will not be developed with this project.

MASTER PLAN:

Land use:

1. Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential.
2. Supporting zone districts for Medium Density Residential are Single Family/Multi

Family (R), Single Family (R1), Two Family (R2), Planned Unit Development (PUD),
Residential Office (RO), Residential Business (RB), Mobile Home Subdivision (RMH-
2), and Manufactured Home Subdivision (RMH-3).

3. Zone classification of the properties are required to conform to the Master Plan.
4. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of

lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.
5. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide

natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from Celtic Way.
2. Celtic Way is not classified in the Transportation Component, but would be similar in

classification to a Residential Collector.

The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the Master Plan
and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

1. The property sits outside any capture zone for the City of Elko wells.

The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with wellhead protection
plan.

SECTION 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts:

1. No building, structure or land shall hereafter be used or occupied and no building or
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, moved, or structurally
altered, unless in conformity with all regulations specified in this subsection for the
district in which it is located.

2. No building or other structure shall hereafter be erected or altered:



REZONE 2-19
Bailey & Associates LLC
APN: 001-660-041

Page 4 of 5

a. To exceed the heights required by the current City Airport Master Plan;
b. To accommodate or house a greater number of families than as permitted in this
chapter;
c. To occupy a greater percentage of lot area; or
d. To have narrower or smaller rear yards, front yards, side yards or other open spaces,
than required in this title; or in any other manner contrary to the provisions of this
chapter.

3. No part of a required yard, or other open space, or off street parking or loading space,
provided in connection with any building or use, shall be included as part of a yard, open
space, or off street parking or loading space similarly required for any other building.

4. No yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title. The property meets the area
requirements for the proposed zone district.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

SECTION 3-2-5 (B) – Single Family Residential

1. The existing development meets the requirements under 3-2-5(G) for minimum area,
minimum lot depth, front and rear yard setbacks, side yard setback and maximum
building height. Several of the lots do not appear to meet the minimum lot width
requirement and will be evaluated with the Tentative Map application and will be
required to have a modification of standards approved.

2. As the property develops, it will be required to be consistent with the listed principal uses
permitted.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-5 (B) and (G)
with the approval of a modification of standards for minimum lot width if required.

SECTION 3-2-21:

The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

SECTION 3-3-5

1. The application for change of zoning district boundaries shall be heard by the Planning
Commission at the same meeting as the tentative map is considered, but shall be acted
upon as a separate item. The application for change of zoning district boundaries shall be
heard prior to the action item for possible approval of the tentative map. When a tentative
map constitutes only one unit of a larger development intended for progressive maps, the
change of zoning district boundaries may be limited to the area contained in the tentative
map application. Any required change of zoning district boundaries shall have been
approved by the City Council prior to tentative map approval. A change of zoning district
boundaries required under this Section must, without limitation, conform to all applicable
master plan(s) adopted by the City.

The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-3-5(A).



REZONE 2-19
Bailey & Associates LLC
APN: 001-660-041

Page 5 of 5

SECTION 3-8:

The proposed zone district is not located in a designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).

FINDINGS:

1. The proposed zone district is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

2. The proposed zone district is compatible with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan and is consistent with the existing transportation infrastructure.

3. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

4. The proposed zone district and resultant land use is in conformance with City Wellhead
Protection Plan.

5. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-4(B).

6. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-2-5 (B) and
(G).

7. The application is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-21.

8. The proposed zone district is in conformance with Elko City Code Section 3-3-5(A).

9. The proposed zone district is not located in a designated Special Flood Hazard Area
(SFHA).

10. The proposed zone district is consistent with surrounding land uses.

11. Development under the proposed zone district will not adversely impact natural systems,
or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains etc., or pose a
danger to human health and safety.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be approved as presented.



















S
u
n
n
y
s
i
d
e
 
A

v
e

Clover Hills Dr

C
l
o
v
e
r
 
H

i
l
l
s
 
C

i
r

Celtic Way

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N

S
 
0
0
°
3
0
'
2
3
"
 
E

 
6
3
2
.
9
2

N 89°43'20" E 610.08

N
 
0
0
°
3
5
'
0
3
"
 
W

 
6
3
3
.
2
2

S 89°41'39" W 609.21

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
E

N
T

A
T

I
V

E
 
M

A
P

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

S
-
1

6

0 40 80 120 160 200



C
L
O

V
E

R
 
H

I
L
L
S

 
C

I
R

C
L
E

CELTIC WAY

KLEEB FAMILY TRUST

APN 001-994-023

LOT 4723, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1534 CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

MCPHILLIPS, J

APN 001-994-022

LOT 422, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1527 CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

GOWANS, T & T

APN 001-994-020

LOT 420, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3121 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

CHAVEZ, G

APN 001-994-019

LOT 419, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3117 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

TANNER, J & N

APN 001-994-001

LOT 401, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1550 CELTIC WAY

W
E

N
N

E
R

,
 
G

&
S

A
P

N
 
0
0
6
-
0
9
F

-
0
4
3

P
A

R
C

E
L
 
1
 
P

M
 
2
2
6
6
4
4

1
7
2
0
 
C

E
L
T

I
C

 
W

A
Y

5

2

3

0

5

2

3

5

5

2

2

5

5

2

2

0

5

2

1

5

5

2

1

0

5

2

0

5

5

2

0

0

BAILEY AND ASSOCIATES LLC.

APN 001-660-041

PARCEL A OF PM #279073

CURRENT ZONING PQP

NEW ZONING R1

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
E

N
T

A
T

I
V

E
 
M

A
P

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

S
-
1

1



¬«9

¬«34
¬«35

¬«11

¬«41

¬«130

¬«131

¬«3

¬«2

¬«74

¬«19

¬«109
¬«108

¬«90 ¬«20 ¬«31

¬«72

¬«48

¬«36

¬«94

¬«132

¬«60
¬«96

¬«40

¬«106

¬«105

¬«124


































   
































































































  





























































  















































































 


























  






1617

2120

0908

15

22

10

T34N R55E

FOR ASSESSMENT USE ONLY

¥
This map does NOT represent a survey.

It is compiled from official records, including
surveys and deeds. Recorded documents

should be used for detailed legal information.
Unless approved by Elko County Assessor,

other uses are forbidden.

Background - 2015 Pictometry Flyover.

Legend
Public Land

Township/Range

!!!

!

! !

!

Section

County Line

Plat 660
Page 1

Page 2

Page 3

Page 4

Page 5

500 0 500 1,000250

Feet

Overview Map

Index Map

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

Æÿ225

Æÿ227

Alt

Last Update 07/14/2016 JLS

Book 001 Page 660

TO USE THIS MAP:

To access additional
pages and supplemental
maps:

In the Legend, CLICK on 
the color associated with
the map you want to view.

§̈¦80

§̈¦80

¬«225



Agenda Item # I.A.2. 

Created on 6/10/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review and consideration of Tentative Map 7-19, filed by Bailey and 

Associates, LLC for the development of a subdivision entitled Cambridge Estates 

involving the proposed division of approximately 8.02 acres of property into 35 lots 

for residential development within the R1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning 

District, in conjunction with a zone change application, and matters related thereto. 

FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  July 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located on the northeast corner of the 

intersection of Celtic Way and El Armuth Drive.  (APN 001-660-041) 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council conditionally approve 

Tentative Map 7-19 based on facts, findings, and conditions as presented in Staff 

Report dated June 18, 2019. 
 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated June 18, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Bailey and Associates, LLC 

Attn: Jon Bailey 

780 W. Silver Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

jbaileype@gmail.com 

 

Summit Engineering 

Attn: Nitin Bhakta 

1150 Lamoille Highway 

Elko, NV 89801 

nitin@summitnv.com 





Page 1 of 15

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: June 18, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: July 2, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.2
APPLICATION NUMBER: Tentative Map 7-19
APPLICANT: Bailey and Associates, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Cambridge Estates

A Tentative Map for the proposed division of approximately 8.02 acres of property into 35
lots for residential development within an R1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 2 of 15

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-660-041

PARCEL SIZE: 8.02 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R1) Single Family Residential
Upon approval of Zone Change application

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 North (County): Agricultural-Residential (AR) / Developed
 South: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Partially Developed
 East: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
 West (County): Agricultural-Residential (AR) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.
 The area abuts previous residential development on all sides.
 The parcel has some slope to it, which is incorporated into the design of the lots where

possible.
 The property will be accessed off of Celtic Way.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer

Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report –
November 2012

 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(B) Single Family Residential District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback, and

Height
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
 City of Elko Public Ways and Property – Title 9, Chapter 8 Post Construction Runoff

Control and Water Quality Management



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 3 of 15

BACKGROUND:
1. The property owner and applicant is Bailey & Associates, LLC.
2. The subdivision is located on APN 001-660-041.
3. The property is undeveloped.
4. The proposed subdivision consists of 35 lots.
5. The total subdivided area is approximately 8.02 acres.
6. The proposed density is 4.36 units per acre.
7. No phasing is proposed as part of this subdivision.
8. Approximately 1.32 acres are offered for dedication of Newcastle Circle.
9. Approximately 2,415 square feet are offered for dedication as a sanitary sewer easement.
10. Approximately 18,973 square feet are offered for dedication as drainage and maintenance

easements.
11. The property is located at the northeast corner of Celtic Way and El Armuth Drive.
12. A Stage 1 meeting for the proposed subdivision was held.
13. The proposed subdivision is will be located within the Single Family Residential (R1)

zone district upon approval of Rezone 2-19 being processed by the Planning Department.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use:

1. The land use is shown as Medium Density Residential.  Medium Density is identified as
having a density of 5-8 units per acre.

2. Single Family Residential (R1) zoning is listed as a corresponding district for the
Medium Density Designation in the Master Plan.

3. The listed Goal of the Land Use Component states: “Promote orderly, sustainable growth
and efficient land use to improve quality of life and ensure new development meets the
needs of all residents and visitors.”

4. Objective 1 under the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Promote a diverse
mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of lifestyles, incomes, and age
groups.”

a. Best Practice 1.1 – The proposed subdivision meets several of the methods
described to achieve a diverse mix of single family homes in the community.

b. Best Practice 1.3 – The location of the proposed subdivision appears to support
the City striving for a blended community by providing a mix of housing types in
the neighborhood and is supported by existing infrastructure.

5. Objective 8 of the Land Use component of the Master Plan states: “Ensure that new
development does not negatively impact County-wide natural systems or public/federal
lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages, floodplains, etc. or pose a danger to human
health and safety.”  Staff believes there will be no negative impacts to natural systems
and no issue with regard to human health and safety.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use component of
the Master Plan.

Transportation:

1. The area will be accessed from Celtic Way.
2. Celtic Way is classified as a Minor Collector road.
3. The interior street, Newcastle Circle, will serve as a Residential Local road.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 4 of 15

4. The Master Plan recommends a right-of-way width of 50 feet for a Residential Local
road.

5. Upon full buildout, the proposed subdivision is expected to generate approximately 330.4
additional Average Daily Trips based on 9.44 trips/single family residence (ITE Trip
Generation, 10th Edition).

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

ELKO AIRPORT MASTER PLAN:

The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master Plan.

CITY OF ELKO DEVELOPMENT FEASIBILITY, LAND USE, WATER
INFRASTRUCTURE, SANITARY SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE, TRANSPORTATION
INFRASTRUCTURE, AND ANNEXATION POTENTIAL REPORT – NOVEMBER
2012:

The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development Feasibility, Land
Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation Infrastructure, and
Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located outside of any capture zone for City of Elko wells.  Development of the
site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be
directed to a storm sewer system.

SECTION 3-3-5 TENTATIVE MAP STAGE (STAGE II):

Tentative Map 3-3-5(A) – A zoning amendment is required to change the existing Public,
Quasi-Public (PQP) zone to Single Family Residential (R1).  This application has been submitted
and is being processed by the Planning Department.

Tentative Map Approval 3-3-5(E)(2)(a)-(k) – Requires the following findings:

a. Environmental and health laws and regulations concerning water and air pollution, the
disposal of solid waste, facilities to supply water, community or pubic sewage disposal,
and, where applicable, individual systems for sewage disposal.

 The proposed subdivision will be connected to the city’s water supply system,
programmed sewer system and is required to be in compliance with all applicable
federal, state, and local requirements.

b. The availability of water which meets applicable health standards and is sufficient in
quantity for the reasonably foreseeable needs of the subdivision.

 The City of Elko Engineering Department is required to model the anticipated
water consumption of the subdivision.  The City of Elko Utility Department will



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 5 of 15

be required to submit a “Tentative Will-Serve Letter” to the State of Nevada.  The
water modeling requires an update to reflect the increased number of lots.
Current City-wide annual water usage is approximately 50% of the total allocated
water rights.

 City of Elko currently has excess pumping capacity of 3,081 gallons per minute.
Sufficient infrastructure and pumping capacity exists to provide the required
water volume to serve the proposed subdivision and development.

 The Developer will extend properly sized infrastructure as required for
development of the property.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water supply.

c. The availability and accessibility of utilities.
 Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed

development.

d. The availability and accessibility of public services such as schools, police protection,
transportation, recreation, and parks.

 Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

e. Conformity with the zoning ordinance and the City’s Master Plan, except that if any
existing zoning ordinance is inconsistent with the City’s Master Plan, the zoning
ordinance takes precedence.

 The Master Plan Land Use Map shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
With the approval of the associated zone change application, the proposed
subdivision and development have been designed in accordance with the Single
Family Residential (R1) zone.

 The result is a density of 4.36 units per acre, which meets the minimum density of
4 units per acre specified in the Master Plan.

 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the City’s Master Plan as well
as the Zoning Ordinance.

f. General conformity with the City’s Master Plan of streets and highways.
 The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component

of the Master Plan.

g. The effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public streets and the need for new
streets or highways to serve the subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will add approximately 330.4
Average Daily Trips to Celtic Way.  Based on the threshold of 1,000 ADT
referenced in the Master Plan, a traffic study is not required with this subdivision.

 The proposed subdivision and development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

h. Physical characteristics of the land, such as floodplain, slope, and soil.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 6 of 15

 The proposed subdivision and subsequent development of the property is
expected to reduce the potential for erosion in the immediate area.  Development
of the property will not cause unreasonable soil erosion.

 A hydrology report is required with the Final Map and Construction Plan
submittal.

 The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

i. The recommendations and comments and those entities and persons reviewing the
Tentative Map pursuant to this Chapter and NRS 278.330 to 278.3485, inclusive.

j. The availability and accessibility of fire protection, including, but not limited to, the
availability and accessibility of water and services for the prevention and containment of
fires, including fires in wild lands.

k. The submission by the subdivider of an affidavit stating that the subdivider will make
provision for payment of the tax imposed by Chapter 375 of NRS and for compliance
with the disclosure and recording requirements of Subsection 5 of NRS 598.0923, if
applicable, by the subdivider or any successor in interest.

There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed subdivision would
not be in conformance with all applicable provisions.

SECTION 3-3-6 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF TENTATIVE MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Scale – The Tentative Map conforms to the required size and form
specifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The subdivision name, location, and section/township/range, with bearing to a

section corner or quarter-section corner, is shown.
2. The name, address, email, and telephone number of the subdivider is shown.
3. The engineer’s name, address, and telephone number are shown.
4. The scale is shown on all sheets.
5. The north arrow is shown on all sheets.
6. The date of initial preparation and dates of any subsequent revisions are shown.
7. A location map is provided.
8. A legal description is provided.

C. Physical Conditions
1. The existing topography of the site is shown.
2. Existing drainage conditions are shown on the Tentative Map.
3. There are no Special Flood Hazards within the proposed subdivision.
4. All roadways, easements, and corporate limits are shown within and adjacent to

the subdivision.
5. Dimensions of all subdivision boundaries are shown on the Tentative Map.
6. Gross and net acreage of the subdivision is shown.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 7 of 15

D. Recorded Map Information:
1. Any previously recorded maps for adjacent properties is labeled on the Tentative

Map.
E. Existing Zoning:

1. The zoning (once approved by the City Council) is shown for the subject
property.  Zoning classifications for adjacent properties is also shown on the
Tentative Map.

F. Proposed Improvements and Other Features Data:
1. The proposed street layout is shown.  All of the streets are named and proposed

for dedication.  The grades of the proposed streets are shown on the grading plan.
The continuation of roadways is not required of the proposed subdivision.

2. The lot layout with consecutively numbered lots is shown.  The area and
dimensions for each lot are shown, as well as the total number of lots.

3. Typical easements will be required along all lot lines.
4. The required information for street dedication is shown.
5. A zone change is required to change the zoning designation from Public, Quasi-

Public (PQP) to Single Family Residential (R1).  This application has been
submitted and is being processed by the Planning Department.

G. Proposed Deed Restrictions:
1. There are no CC&R’s proposed for the subdivision.

H. Preliminary Grading Plan:
1. A grading plan has been provided.  Estimated quantities of cut and fill have been

provided in a separate document.
I. NPDES Permit Compliance:

1. The subdivider will be required to comply with the City of Elko’s storm water
regulations.

J. Proposed Utility Methods and Requirements:
1. The proposed sewage disposal infrastructure connecting to the City’s

infrastructure is shown on the utility plan.
2. The proposed water supply infrastructure connecting to the City’s infrastructure is

shown on the utility plan.
3. The Tentative Map shows storm water infrastructure.  A hydrology report will be

required with the Final Map and Construction Plan submittal.
4. Utilities in addition to City utilities must be provided with construction plans

required for Final Map submittal.
5. The City will not require a traffic impact study for the proposed subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBDIVISION DESIGN:

A. Conformance with Master Plan: The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the
Master Plan objectives for density and applicable zoning (upon approval of the associated
zone change application).

B. Public Facility Sites: No public facility sites are proposed for dedication.
C. Land Suitability: The area proposed for subdivision is suitable for the proposed

development based on the findings in this report.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 8 of 15

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-10 STREET LOCATION AND ARRANGEMENT:

A. Conformance with Plan: The proposed subdivision utilizes an existing section of Celtic
Way for access.

B. Layout: Street continuation through the proposed subdivision is not required.
C. Extensions: No extensions are required as part of the proposed subdivision.
D. Arrangement of Residential Streets: The arrangement of streets within the subdivision

prevents outside traffic from utilizing the neighborhood for cut-through traffic.
E. Protection of Residential Properties: There are no lots that have frontage or access from

arterial streets.  A note has been required on the Tentative Map that no lots shall front on
Celtic Way, a Minor Collector.

F. Parallel Streets: Consideration of street location is not required.
G. Topography: The residential streets have been designated to address the topography of

the area.
H. Alleys: No alleys are proposed.
I. Half-Streets: There are no half-streets proposed.
J. Dead-End Streets: There are no dead-end streets proposed.
K. Intersection Design: The proposed intersections with Celtic Way are code compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-11 STREET DESIGN:

A. Required Right-of-Way Widths:
a. Newcastle Circle – 50 feet.  The proposed right-of-way width for Celtic Way is

50 feet.
B. Street Grades: The proposed street grades are code compliant.
C. Vertical Curves: The vertical curves are code compliant.
D. Horizontal Alignment: The horizontal alignment of the streets and intersection are code

compliant.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-12 BLOCK DESIGN:

A. Maximum Length of Blocks: The block design does not exceed the maximum length of a
block and maximizes block length.

B. Sidewalks or Pedestrian ways: The proposed sidewalks are code compliant.  No other
pedestrian ways are proposed.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 9 of 15

SECTION 3-3-13 LOT PLANNING:

A. Lot Width, Depth, and Area: The lots are in conformance with the specifications
stipulated for the zoning in Elko City Code 3-2-5 with the exception of:

a. Lots 7-10, 13, and 14 do not comply with the minimum 60-foot lot frontage
requirement.

b. Lots 29 and 35 do not comply with the minimum of 6,500 square feet for corner
lots.

A modification of standards will be required to be approved for these deficiencies.  All
lots will have improved frontage.

B. Lot Depth: The lots are in conformance with the stipulated lot depth in Elko City Code 3-
2-5.  All lots have depths of at least 100 feet.

C. Building Setback: The proposed subdivision, when developed, can meet setback
requirements as stipulated in Elko City Code 3-2-5(G).

D. Side Lot Lines: The side lot lines are generally at right angles to the street.  Deviations
occur on inside curves and are appropriate.

E. Accessibility: Every lot abuts a proposed public street.
F. Prohibitions: Lots 1, 21, 22, and 35 are double frontage lots.  A note has been required on

the Tentative Map that no lots shall front on Celtic Way, a Minor Collector.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the approval
of a modification of standards for the lots listed in section A (above) and the note added as part
of section F (above).

SECTION 3-3-14 EASEMENT PLANNING:

A. Utility Easements: Typical side and rear yard easements are provided.  A sewer easement
is proposed in the northeast corner of the site.  Overhead utilities are not allowed within
the subdivision.

B. Underground Utilities: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.  The
utility companies, at their discretion, may request a wider easement on the rear lot line.

C. Lots Facing Curvilinear Streets: Overhead utilities are not allowed within the subdivision.
D. Public Drainage Easement: There are two public drainage easements offered for

dedication.
E. Easement Land Not Considered and Considered in Minimum Lot Area Calculation: All

calculations appear to be correct.
F. Lots Backing Onto Arterial Streets: There are no lots proposed which back onto an

arterial street.
G. Water and Sewer Lines: The utilities are shown in the streets.  A sewer easement is

shown in the northeast portion of the subdivision to provide the connection with the
existing City sewer infrastructure.

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

SECTION 3-3-15 STREET NAMING:

The subdivider has proposed the street name of Newcastle Circle.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 10 of 15

The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

SECTIONS 3-3-16 STREET LIGHT DESIGN STANDARDS:

Conformance is required with the submittal of construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-17 through 3-3-22 (inclusive):

All referenced sections are applicable to Final Map submission, approval, and construction plans.

SECTION 3-3-23 PARK LAND DEDICATIONS:

There is no offer of dedication for park lands.

SECTION 3-3-25 MODIFICATION OF STANDARDS:

1. Lots 7-10, 13, and 14 are located on interior corners and do not comply with the
minimum 60-foot lot frontage requirement.  These lots range in width from 37.87 to
54.62 feet and become wider further back. The need for a detention basin in the northeast
corner of the site has limited the available frontage area for these lots.

2. Lots 29 and 35 do not comply with the minimum area for corner lots of 6,500 square feet.
Lot 29 is approximately 6.414 square feet and Lot 35 is approximately 6,424 square feet.
While both lots comply with the overall length and width requirement, they are located
on a corner and lose some of their square footage to the required turn radius.

A Modification of Standards for both of these issues is included with the approval of the
Tentative Map.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS:

Section 3-2-3(C)(1) of City code specifies use restrictions.  The following use restrictions shall
apply:

Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as “principal uses
permitted” in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal uses; all other uses shall
be prohibited as principal uses.

Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or conditional
uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.

Section 3-2-3(D) states that: “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by
the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme topography,
low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be harmful to the
health, safety, and general welfare of the community.  The planning commission, in applying the



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 11 of 15

provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular facts upon which its conclusions are
based.  The applicant shall have the right to present evidence contesting such determination to
the city council if he or she so desires, whereupon the city council may affirm, modify, or
withdraw the determination of unsuitability.”

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS:

1. Section 3-2-4(B) Required Conformity to District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof
shall be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this
title.

The proposed subdivision with the approved Modification of Standards is in conformance with
Section 3-2-4 of City code.

SECTION 3-2-5(B) R1 – SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL:

Section 3-2-5(B)(2) Principal Uses Permitted:

1. Electric power substations, sewer lift stations, and water pump stations wherein service to
district residents requires location within the district.

2. One single-family dwelling of a permanent character in a permanent location with each
dwelling unit on its own parcel of land and provided all area and setback requirements
are met.

3. Publicly owned and operated parks and recreation areas and centers.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(B)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(B) is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-2-5(G) RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS AREA, SETBACKS, AND
HEIGHT:

1. Lot areas are shown.
2. Lot dimensions are shown.  With the approval of the associated Modification of

Standards, the lot dimensions are in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City code.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of City
code with the approved modifications of standards for Lots 7-10, 13, 14, 29, and 35.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING, AND LOADING:

1. The proposed roadways are classified as residential streets in accordance with the Master
Plan.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 12 of 15

2. The proposed lots are large enough to develop the required off-street parking to be
located outside the front and interior side yards.

The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17 of City code.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT:

The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated special flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

TITLE 9, CHAPTER 8 POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL AND WATER
QUALTIY MANAGEMENT:

Final design of the subdivision is required to conform to the requirements of this title.  The
Tentative Map storm drain infrastructure is shown through the area.

OTHER:

The following permits will be required for the project:

1. Storm water general permit: Required submittals to the City of Elko are a plan view
showing the storm water controls, a copy of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) and a copy of the certified confirmation letter.

2. A Surface Area Disturbance (SAD) is required if the disturbed area is equal to or greater
than five (5) acres.  A copy of the SAD permit is required to be submitted to the City of
Elko.

3. A street cut permit from the City of Elko.
4. A grading permit from the City of Elko.
5. All other applicable permits and fees required by the City of Elko.
6. The City of Elko also requires submittal of the plans to the individual utility companies

before permits will be issued for the project.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Land Use
component of the Master Plan.

2. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with the Transportation
component of the Master Plan.

3. The proposed subdivision and development does not conflict with the Airport Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision does not conflict with the City of Elko Development
Feasibility, Land Use, Water Infrastructure, Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure, Transportation
Infrastructure, and Annexation Potential Report – November 2012.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 13 of 15

5. The property is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

6. The proposed subdivision and development are in conformance with the Wellhead
Protection Program.  The sanitary sewer will be connected to a programed sewer system
and all street drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.

7. A zoning amendment is required and has been submitted to the Planning Department to
change the property zoning from Public, Quasi-Public (PQP) to Single Family
Residential (R1).

8. In accordance with Section 3-3-5(E)(2), the proposed subdivision and development will
not result in undue water or air pollution based on the following:

a. There are no obvious considerations or concerns which indicate the proposed
subdivision would not be in conformance with all applicable environmental and
health laws and regulations.

b. There is adequate capacity within the City’s water supply to accommodate the
proposed subdivision.

c. The proposed subdivision and development will not create an unreasonable
burden on the existing water system.

d. There is adequate capacity at the Water Reclamation Facility to support the
proposed subdivision and development.

e. The proposed subdivision and development will be connected to the City’s
programed sanitary sewer system.  Therefore, the ability of soils to support waste
disposal does not require evaluation prior to Tentative Map approval.

f. Utilities are available in the immediate area and can be extended for the proposed
development.

g. Schools, fire and police, and recreational services are available throughout the
community.

h. With the approval of the associated Modification of Standards regarding Lots 7-
10, 13, and 14, the proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with
applicable zoning ordinances and is in conformance with the Master Plan.

i. The proposed subdivision a d development will not cause unreasonable traffic
congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to existing or proposed streets.

j. The area is not located within a designated flood zone.  Concentrated storm water
runoff has been addressed as shown on the grading plan.

k. The proposed subdivision and development is not expected to result in
unreasonable erosion or reduction in the water-holding capacity of the land
thereby creating a dangerous or unhealthy condition.

9. The proposed subdivision submittal is in conformance with Section 3-3-6 of City code.

10. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-9 of City code.

11. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-10 of City code.

12. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-11 of City code.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 14 of 15

13. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-12 of City code.

14. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-13 of City code with the
approval of a Modification of Standards to front width requirements for 7-10, 13,14, 29,
and 35.

15. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-14 of City code.

16. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with Section 3-3-15 of City code.

17. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-3 of City
code.

18. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-4 of City
code.

19. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(B)(2).
Conformance with Section 3-2-5(B) is required as the subdivision develops.

20. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-5(G) of
City code with the approval of the Modification of Standards to front width requirements
for 7-10, 13,14, 29, and 35.

21. The proposed subdivision and development is in conformance with Section 3-2-17.
Conformance with Section 3-2-17 is required as the subdivision develops.

22. The proposed subdivision and development is not located in a designated flood hazard
area and is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

23. The proposed subdivision design shall conform to Title 9, Chapter 8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. Rezone 2-19 must be approved by the City Council and all conditions be met.

2. The subdivider is to comply with all provisions of the NAC and NRS pertaining to the
proposed subdivision.

3. Tentative Map approval constitutes authorization for the subdivider to proceed with
preparation of the Final Map and associated construction plans.

4. Tentative Map approval does not constitute authorization to proceed with site
improvements, with the exception of authorized grading, prior to approval of the
construction plans by the City and the State.



Tentative Map 7-19
Cambridge Estates

Page 15 of 15

5. The applicant submit an application for Final Map within a period of four (4) years in
accordance with NRS.360(1)(a).  Approval of the Tentative Map will automatically lapse
at that time.

6. A soils report is required with Final Map submittal.

7. A hydrology report is required with Final Map submittal.

8. Final Map construction plans are to comply with Chapter 3-3 of City code.

9. The subdivision design and construction shall comply with Title 9, Chapter 8 of City
code.

10. The Utility Department will issue an Intent to Serve letter upon approval of the Tentative
Map by the City Council.

11. A Modification of Standards approved by City Council for Lots 7-10, 13, and 14 to have
reduced frontage widths.

12. A Modification of Standards approved by City Council for Lots 29 and 35 to have
reduced square-footages.

13. Prior to being scheduled for a City Council hearing, the Tentative Map shall be modified
as follows:

a. Remove the word “easement” from the description of the dedicated land along the
eastern side of the subdivision and instead show this area as a separate parcel to
be dedicated to the City of Elko similar to the street, detention pond, and sewer
dedications.

b. Remove the residential lot property lines within the dedicated area described
above.

c. Adjust the building setback line to reflect the correct rear property line.

d. Recalculate the lot areas to eliminate the dedicated area.

e. Revise the buildable area of the lots to reflect the correct rear property line.































































 
 
 
 

 HYDROLOGY REPORT 
FOR 

CAMBRIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
ELKO, NEVADA 

 
 
 
 
 
     

Prepared for: 
 

BAILEY AND ASOCIATES LLC. 
780 WEST SILVER STREET 

ELKO, NV 89801 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUMMIT ENGINEERING CORPORATION 

1150 LAMOILLE HIGHWAY 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775) 738-8058 
 
 
 
 

JOB # 3-82416 
 
 
 
 

APIL 2019



 I 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Introduction...................................................................................................................................... 1 
Hydrology Methodology ................................................................................................................. 4 
Existing Hydrology .......................................................................................................................... 5 
Proposed Hydrology ........................................................................................................................ 6 
Conclusion ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
 

List of Tables 
Table 1 – Existing 5-Year Runoff .................................................................................................... 5 
Table 2 – Existing 100-Year Runoff ................................................................................................ 5 
Table 3 – Proposed 5-Year Runoff ................................................................................................... 6 
Table 4 – Proposed 100-Year Runoff ............................................................................................... 6 
 
 
Appendix 

• Vicinity Map 
• Site Plan 
• Existing Hydrology Basins Display Map 
• Proposed Hydrology Basins Display Map 
• FEMA Map 
• NOAA Precipitation Estimate 

 
 
 



 1 

INTRODUCTION 
The following report contains the hydrologic analysis for the 35 Unit Cambridge Estates Subdivision  
located in Elko, Nevada.  The proposed project occupies 8.02-acre site, the site is currently bear with 
predominant sagebrush and native grass cover over the existing site. (Refer to Appendix A - Vicinity 
Map).  The proposed site is surrounded by existing subdivision to the north, south, east and west of the 
site. existing shopping plaza.  The project will consist of a 1.53 acres of Right-of-Way space and the 
remainder to be utilized for residential homes. (refer to Appendix for proposed Site Plan). 
 
The site is bound by the following: 
 North: Existing subdivide land / residential homes (Existing) 

 South: Existing subdivide land / residential homes (Existing) 

 East: Existing subdivide land / residential homes (Existing) 

 West: Existing subdivide land / residential homes (Existing) 
 
The site topography is moderately steep with slopes ranging from 0.5% to 10% with ground cover 
consisting mostly of bare soil with grasses and shrubbery.  According to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Panel Number 32007C5608E, the 
subject property is outside the 100 year flood zone limits. 
 
The purpose of this report is to analyze the existing and proposed conditions of the subject property based 
on the 5-year and 100-year peak flow events.  The report contains the following sections: (1) 
Methodology, (2) Existing Hydrology, (3) Proposed Hydrology, and (4) Conclusion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

HYDROLOGY METHODOLOGY 
The hydrology was determined by using the Rational Method.  The parameters for this method of analysis 
are: 
 1. The Drainage Area 
 2. Time of Concentration 
 3. Runoff Coefficient 
 4. Rainfall Intensity 
 
The time of concentration is calculated based on two equations: 
 
 tc = tI + tt 

 
Where: 

  tt = the travel time in ditch, channel, gutter, storm drain, etc. (ft) 

   
 

Where: 
    L = length of ditch, channel, gutter, etc. 
   V = velocity of flow 
 

and: 
tI = initial overland flow time (ft) 

 

 
Where: 

   L = length of overland flow 
   R = rational coefficient, C5 
   S = average overland slope 
and: 

 

 
Where:   

L = length of basin 
 
 

Peak runoff is calculated using the following equation: 
 Q = C I A 
 
Where: 
 Q = Peak Runoff 
 C = Coefficient of Runoff 
 I = Rainfall Intensity (in/hr) 
 A = Total Area (acres) 
 

V
Ltt 60

=

3/1

2/1)1.1(8.1
S

LRti
−

=

10
180

+=
Ltc  



 3 

Due to short travel times for runoff, on the project site, Rainfall intensity (I) is determined from the time 
of concentration = (10 minutes minimum), and the NOAA Atlas 14, Volume 1 for Elko, Nevada. 
 

For Tc = 10 minutes the rainfall intensities are as follows: 
I(5) = 1.57 in/hr 

I(100) = 3.86 in/hr 
 
 

Runoff coefficients, C, were obtained from the Land Development Handbook resulting in a 5-year 
coefficient of 0.35 and a 100-year coefficient of 0.45, for existing conditions (Undeveloped Range) and a 
5-year coefficient of 0.80 and a 100-year coefficient of 0.85 to 0.95, for post development conditions 
(Downtown Business/Commercial). 
 

EXISTING HYDROLOGY 
For subdivision site in the existing state, the site was analyzed as six (1) on-site existing sub-basins.  The 
rational method analysis was performed on each sub-basin to determine peak runoff. Basin #1 is a 
localized and the runoff will sheet flow and discharge into an existing 36” SD Pipe located at the 
northeast corner of the property.  This storm drain pipe ties into the City of Elko storm drain system. 
 
Table 1 – Existing 5-Year Runoff and Table 2 - Existing 100-Year Runoff show each sub-basin’s peak 
runoff and collection point.  Appendix – Existing Hydrology Basins Display Map shows the existing 
hydrologic sub-basins and rational method information for the site. 
 
 
 

TABLE 1 - EXISTING 5-YEAR RUNOFF 
Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

EX #1 0.35 1.57 8.02 4.40 Ex. 36” SD Pipe 

      
      

TOTAL     8.02 4.40   
 
 
 

TABLE 2 - EXISTING 100-YEAR RUNOFF 
Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

EX #1 0.45 3.86 8.02 13.90 Ex. 36” SD Pipe 

      
      

TOTAL     8.02 13.90   

 
  



 4 

PROPOSED HYDROLOGY 
The developed site was analyzed as six (6) on-site sub-basins.  The rational method analysis was 
performed on each sub-basin to determine peak runoff.  Sub-Basin #1 discharges into an existing Catch 
basin on-site.  Sub-Basin #2 also discharges into an existing catch basin on-site.  Sub-Basin #3 discharges 
into a new proposed catch basin that ties into an existing drainage pipe that crosses the site.    Sub-Basin 
#4 discharges into a existing drop inlet on-site.  Sub-Basin #5 does not discharge discharges into an basin, 
this basin percolates on-site.  Sub-Basin #6 discharges into the existing drainage west of the site. 
Appendix – Proposed Hydrology Basins Display Map shows the proposed hydrologic sub-basins and 
rational method information for the site. 
 

TABLE 3 - PROPOSED 5-YEAR RUNOFF 
Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

P #1 0.5 1.57 5.30 4.16 
New Type 4R 
CATCH BASIN 

P #2 0.5 1.57 2.73 2.14 
New Type 4R 
CATCH BASIN 

      
TOTAL     8.02 6.30   

 
TABLE 4 - PROPOSED 100-YEAR RUNOFF 

Sub-Basin Coefficient Intensity (in/hr) Area (Ac) Runoff (cfs) Collection Point 

P #1 0.6 3.86 5.30 12.27 
New Type 4R 
CATCH BASIN 

P #2 0.6 3.86 2.73 6.32 
New Type 4R 
CATCH BASIN 

      
TOTAL     8.02 18.59   

 
 

CONCLUSIONS 
All the existing and proposed runoff drain into the existing 36” Storm Drain pipe located northeast of the 
subject property.  The existing drainage pipe has sufficient capacity to handle the increase in runoff from 
the 5 year and the 100-year storm events. 
 
The difference in flows for the 5-year storm event between the existing and proposed conditions is an 
increase of 1.90 cfs and  the difference in flows for the 100-year storm event between the existing and 
proposed conditions is an increase of 4.70 cfs.  The proposed site also incorporates a detention basin to 
the northeast that would allow for the peak flow to be detained before entering the existing 36” storm 
drain pipe. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C
L

O
V

E
R

 
H

I
L

L
S

 
C

I
R

C
L

E

M
O

R
N

I
N

G
 
B

R
E

E
Z

E
 
D

R
I
V

E

CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

CELTIC WAY

VASQUEZ, J & G

APN 006-09F-039

PARCEL 4 PM 202405

1327 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

SHIPPY, D & C

APN 006-09F-038

PARCEL 3 PM 202405

1301 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

KLEEB FAMILY TRUST

APN 001-994-023

LOT 4723, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1534 CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

MCPHILLIPS, J

APN 001-994-022

LOT 422, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1527 CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

GOWANS, T & T

APN 001-994-020

LOT 420, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3121 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

CHAVEZ, G

APN 001-994-019

LOT 419, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3117 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

TANNER, J & N

APN 001-994-001

LOT 401, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1550 CELTIC WAY

INTERNATIONAL CHURCH OF THE

FOURSQUARE GOSPEL

APN 01-660-11

PARCEL N/A PM 368882

0 CELTIC WAY

MORQUECHO, G

APN 001-66A-015

LOT 15 PM 368882

2748 SUNNYSIDE AVENUE

MCANANY C & V

APN 001-66A-016

LOT 16 PM 368882

1703 CELTIC WAY

STEPHENS, L&V

APN 001-66A-017

LOT 17 PM 368882

1707 CELTIC WAY

W
E

N
N

E
R

,
 
G

&
S

A
P

N
 
0

0
6

-
0

9
F

-
0

4
3

P
A

R
C

E
L

 
1

 
P

M
 
2

2
6

6
4

4

1
7

2
0

 
C

E
L

T
I
C

 
W

A
Y

TROWBRIDGE, D

APN 00609F072

PARCEL 3-B PM 350763

1363 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

S
U

N
N

Y
S

I
D

E
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

5

2

3

0

5

2

3

5

5

2

2

5

5

2

2

0

5

2

1

5

5

2

1

0

5

2

0

5

5

2

0

0

5

1

9

5

5

1

9

0

5

1

8

5

5

1

8

0

BAILEY AND ASSOCIATES LLC.

APN 001-660-041

PARCEL A OF PM #279073

CELTIC WAY

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

1 1



C
L

O
V

E
R

 
H

I
L

L
S

 
C

I
R

C
L

E

M
O

R
N

I
N

G
 
B

R
E

E
Z

E
 
D

R
I
V

E

CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

CELTIC WAY

VASQUEZ, J & G

APN 006-09F-039

PARCEL 4 PM 202405

1327 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

SHIPPY, D & C

APN 006-09F-038

PARCEL 3 PM 202405

1301 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

KLEEB FAMILY TRUST

APN 001-994-023

LOT 4723, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1534 CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

MCPHILLIPS, J

APN 001-994-022

LOT 422, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1527 CLOVER HILLS DRIVE

GOWANS, T & T

APN 001-994-020

LOT 420, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3121 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

CHAVEZ, G

APN 001-994-019

LOT 419, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3117 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

TANNER, J & N

APN 001-994-001

LOT 401, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

1550 CELTIC WAY

INTERNATIONAL CHURCH OF THE

FOURSQUARE GOSPEL

APN 01-660-11

PARCEL N/A PM 368882

0 CELTIC WAY

MORQUECHO, G

APN 001-66A-015

LOT 15 PM 368882

2748 SUNNYSIDE AVENUE

MCANANY C & V

APN 001-66A-016

LOT 16 PM 368882

1703 CELTIC WAY

STEPHENS, L&V

APN 001-66A-017

LOT 17 PM 368882

1707 CELTIC WAY

W
E

N
N

E
R

,
 
G

&
S

A
P

N
 
0

0
6

-
0

9
F

-
0

4
3

P
A

R
C

E
L

 
1

 
P

M
 
2

2
6

6
4

4

1
7

2
0

 
C

E
L

T
I
C

 
W

A
Y

TROWBRIDGE, D

APN 00609F072

PARCEL 3-B PM 350763

1363 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

S
U

N
N

Y
S

I
D

E
 
A

V
E

N
U

E

5

2

3

0

5

2

3

5

5

2

2

5

5

2

2

0

5

2

1

5

5

2

1

0

5

2

0

5

5

2

0

0

5

1

9

5

5

1

9

0

5

1

8

5

5

1

8

0

BAILEY AND ASSOCIATES LLC.

APN 001-660-041

PARCEL A OF PM #279073

CELTIC WAY

AREA P1=5.30 ACRES

C=0.50

I

5

=1.57

Q=4.16

AREA P2=2.73 ACRES

C=0.50

I

5

=1.57

Q=2.14

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

1 1



USGS The National Map: Orthoimagery. Data refreshed April, 2019.

National Flood Hazard Layer FIRMette

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

Ü

11
5°

48
'31

.78
"W

 40°50'19.43"N 

115°47'54.32"W
 

40°49'52.21"N 

SEE FIS REPORT FOR DETAILED LEGEND AND INDEX MAP FOR FIRM PANEL LAYOUT

SPECIAL FLOOD
HAZARD AREAS

Without Base Flood Elevation (BFE)
Zone A, V, A99

With BFE or Depth Zone AE, AO, AH, VE, AR
Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard, Areas
of 1% annual chance flood with average
depth less than one foot or with drainage
areas of less than one square mile  Zone X
Future Conditions 1% Annual
Chance Flood Hazard Zone X
Area with Reduced Flood Risk due to
Levee. See Notes. Zone X
Area with Flood Risk due to Levee Zone D

NO SCREEN Area of Minimal Flood Hazard Zone X

Area of Undetermined Flood Hazard Zone D

Channel, Culvert, or Storm Sewer
Levee, Dike, or Floodwall

Cross Sections with 1% Annual Chance
17.5 Water Surface Elevation

Coastal Transect

Coastal Transect Baseline
Profile Baseline
Hydrographic Feature

Base Flood Elevation Line (BFE)

Effective LOMRs

Limit of Study
Jurisdiction Boundary

Digital Data Available
No Digital Data Available
Unmapped

This map complies with FEMA's standards for the use of 
digital flood maps if it is not void as described below. 
The basemap shown complies with FEMA's basemap 
accuracy standards
The flood hazard information is derived directly from the
authoritative NFHL web services provided by FEMA. This map
was exported on 5/6/2019 at 7:44:16 PM  and does not
reflect changes or amendments subsequent to this date and
time. The NFHL and effective information may change or
become superseded by new data over time.
This map image is void if the one or more of the following map
elements do not appear: basemap imagery, flood zone labels,
legend, scale bar, map creation date, community identifiers,
FIRM panel number, and FIRM effective date. Map images for
unmapped and unmodernized areas cannot be used for
regulatory purposes. 

Legend

OTHER AREAS OF
FLOOD HAZARD

OTHER AREAS

GENERAL
STRUCTURES

OTHER
FEATURES

MAP PANELS

8

1:6,000

B 20.2

The pin displayed on the map is an approximate 
point selected by the user and does not represent 
an authoritative property location.



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%��&��%�'(�)*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��+

,-..�./012�345�67089:�35�6:;2<7=�>�?@A-�BCD-E�E/1/<7=�FGH�IJKI>LM�@7N1/<7=�=19:H�?0O75�,:P1Q15�RE.S�@1/</8Q:H�4TUVI>W5�@7=X</8Q:H�K33>ULY3LW�?0:P1/<7=H�?0:P1/<7=�Z2/1/<7=�9:/1Q1/1[H�>T>T�\/SS]�����
	��̂�_̀�a����]]�����
	��b�c�d-F,e�df?CFdFe.eF-,�Bf?gR?,Ch�?EeFi.e?E���j���	��
�k���������	lk�������m	�"k�n�##����m��	�k�o�l�����a������k��	p�����a����k����������#���
k�̀������_��k�q��#�r����#�sk���#	�b����k��	��#���t��k�a�
��	#�t	s�k�r���u���k�c	�  �	�v�����k�����	#�v�	�	�k�n�(q�����q�	�k�r�	����l�p�sk�w����t��
����xyzzk�x�����#�{	��	���	���
	k���#�	��������k�a���#�����!�p�#���|���!������
�#�|�a���!&!�	���#�dB�/1}801;dGEK}12:Q�~7<=/�~;:N<~</1/<7=�\;:�8:=N��:2/<91/:2��</��YT��N7=\<Q:=N:�<=/:;P102�Z<=�<=N�:2��78;[3G8;1/<7= .P:;1X:�;:N8;;:=N:�<=/:;P10�Z�:1;2[3 I > 3T I> >T 3TT ITT >TT 3TTT>K9<= 3U3J�����+���)*� 3U4Y����������� IUTJ���'������� IU>V��������)�� MU4I���)��+�'�� 4UIT������)���� >UTV���'��*��'� JU34�+��'���)'� LUVI�)��'������ YUMI�)���������3TK9<= TUVVV���*�������� 3U3M�����'���)+� 3U>L���������+� 3UYJ���)����''� IUJT����*���)*� MUIT����)�+�+�� MUVJ���*'�)��'� 4UJL����+�'�)�� >UY>����������� LUTY�+�)�����)�3>K9<= TULMI���)�+������� TUY4T���*+�����*� 3UMT��������*'� 3UJI����'������ IU3>���'�����)� IUJ4����+���''� MU3Y������+�++� MUVJ���'��)���� 4UYI����+�'��)� >UVJ���*�������MTK9<= TU4YI���������''+� TUJMI���)�+����)+� TUVLI���'�������� 3UTY����+����+�� 3U4>����������� 3ULV��������+'� IU3>���)+������ IUJT��������'�� MUM3������+�'�� MUY>���)��)�)+�JTK9<= TUMT>����+����+��� TUMY3���������)��� TU>4T���+�����*�)� TUJL4���)�)������� TUVYL���'�������� 3U3T���������)�� 3UMM����)�����)� 3UJ3���������+� IUT>����)����'� IU44���))���+��IK�; TUITT����'�����)�� TUI>>������������� TUMMV����**���+�*� TU43I�����+���)�'� TU>IV���+�����'��� TUJMT���+�������+� TUL4L���)''����*'� TUVV4���'))����*� 3UTY���**����+*� 3UIV���������*)�MK�; TU3>3�����*������� TU3Y3����)�������� TUI4V�����'������� TUIYV����++������� TUML>���������+��� TU44T����+*���)*+� TU>3M�����'���'**� TUJT>���+))������� TUL4>���)+������� TUVLI���'�)������JK�; TUTYY�����'������� TU3IM�����)����+*� TU3>>������������� TU3V4����)*������� TUII>�����*����*'� TUIJT�����+������� TUIYL����+�����'�� TUMMV����'����+��� TUMYL�����*���)��� TU4JT����+*���'���3IK�; TUTJI����)+����*�� TUTLV����'�������� TUTYY�����'�����'� TU33J�����������'� TU34T����������')� TU3JT�����)������� TU3VT����)������)� TUITI����''����+�� TUIMM�����������'� TUI>V�����+�������I4K�; TUTMV�����)����+�� TUT4V����+�����)+� TUTJ3����))����'�� TUTLI����')������� TUTVJ����*������'� TUTYV�����*������� TU33T������������� TU3IM�����������*� TU34T����������)'� TU3>4����������*��IKQ1� TUTII�����������+� TUTIL�����)������� TUTM4������������� TUT4T�����'����++� TUT4V����++����)�� TUT>>����+�����'�� TUTJ3����))����'*� TUTJV����'�����*)� TUTLL����'������)� TUTV>����*+�������MKQ1� TUT3J�����+�����*� TUTIT������������� TUTI>�����������*� TUTIY�����'������� TUTM>������������� TUTMY�����)����+�� TUT44����������+�� TUT4Y����+�����)+� TUT>>����+�����'�� TUTJ3����)�����'*�4KQ1� TUT3M�����������+� TUT3J�����)�����*� TUTIT������������� TUTIM�����������'� TUTIV�����)������� TUTMI�����������)� TUTM>������������� TUTMY�����)����+�� TUT44����������+�� TUT4Y����+�����)+�LKQ1� TUTTV������������� TUT33������������� TUT3M�����������)� TUT3J�����+�����*� TUT3V�����*������� TUTI3������������� TUTIM�����������)� TUTIJ������������� TUTIY�����'������� TUTM3�����������)�3TKQ1� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTV�����*������� TUT3T������������� TUT3I������������� TUT34�����������)� TUT3J�����+�����*� TUT3V�����'������� TUT3Y������������� TUTII�����������+� TUTI4�����������'�ITKQ1� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTL�����*������� TUTTY������������� TUT3T������������� TUT33������������� TUT3I������������� TUT3M�����������)� TUT34�����������'�MTKQ1� TUTTM�����������+� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����)�����'� TUTTL�����'������� TUTTV�����*������� TUTTV������������� TUTTY������������� TUT3T������������� TUT33�������������4>KQ1� TUTTM������������� TUTTM������������� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����+�����)� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTL�����'�����*� TUTTV�����*������� TUTTV�����*�������JTKQ1� TUTTI������������� TUTTM������������� TUTTM�����������+� TUTT4�����+�����+� TUTT>�����+�����)� TUTT>�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����)�����'� TUTTJ�����'�����*� TUTTL�����'�����*� TUTTL�����'�����������	
�������� �	��	�
�������	��"�	����������p#	���	�p��	����� �	��	�
�����#������ ������#����������	��	��������x�"p	���������	��	������	����	��"�	����#��	���������	��p������� ��	�����
�� ��	�
	���	���#��r�	����p�p�#��������	
�������� �	��	�
��	��"�	��� �������	����������������	���	��	
���	�
	���	���#����##�p	���	�	�������	����	��p���������#	��������	�#��	��p���������)���̂��"�	�������	��p��������	���
�	
s	������������p�p#	�"���"�"���	
����������a���	��"�	������"���p	�����	������
���	�#����#����a����#�	���#	��	��	 	����xyzz�z#����+���
�"	�� ���"��	��� ��"����� v�
s���r��dB�X;1~�<N10



��������� ��	
����������	��	�
�������	��	�

���������
�����������������
�� ���� ��!�������	��"#$�%��&��%�'(�)*�&���%��	����&����%	��#���&�	��	�%��� ��+

,�
-���.��/012�3�045607289077�2:074�;45506<



(CY)

(CY)

(AC)

(SF)

Celtic Song Subdivision

7.8909
(775) 385-3659

343,727

CELTIC SONG SUBDIVISION
RAW CUT: 47,198

BAILEY ENGINEERING, PLLC
RAW FILL: 20,187

NET BALANCE: 27,011 EXPORT (CY)

JBAILEYPE@GMAIL.COM

REFERENCE # : 2/15/2019

JON BAILEY
GRADED AREA:



Balance(CY)
Cut(SF) Fill(SF) OnGrade(SF) Cut(CY) Fill(CY) Cut Fill Cut(CY) Fill(CY) Change /.1'

Offsite 5,983 3,154 595 99 63 1.00 1.00 99 63 36 Export 36

Onsite 194,056 134,764 5,175 47,099 20,124 1.00 1.00 47,099 20,124 26,975 Export 1,238

Site Total 200,039 137,918 5,770 47,198 20,187 1.00 1.00 47,198 20,187 27,011 Export 1,274

Plane Slope Depth Volume
Area(SF) Area(SF) (FT) (CY)

OFF Sidewalk 1,900 1,906 0.667 48 Existing Layer: 

OFF Street 5,551 5,567 1.000 206 Data imported from "SUMMIT TOPO.dwg".

ONS Sewer Access 2,467 2,480 1.000 92

ONS Sidewalk 9,067 9,073 0.667 224 Design Layer: 

ONS Street 48,038 48,075 1.000 1,781 Data imported from "Stage One Bailey Map.dwg".

Total 67,023 67,101 2,351

Subgrade Sections: 

Plane Slope Depth Volume 01.   Sewer Access Road 3”/9” (assumed)

Area(SF) Area(SF) (FT) (CY) 02.   Sidewalk 4”/4” (assumed)

Stripping 343,727 344,773 0.667 8,517 03.   Street 3"/9" (per request)

Removal Items: 

Demolition was removed before volumes were calculated, and needs to be stockpiled or off-hauled.

01.   Stripping 8" (per request)

Area of Concern:

01.   All FG elevations at the Pad areas were disregarded due to conflict with the proposed slopes and contours.
02.   No PDF sheets were provided, and the lack of details may affect the accuracy of this report.

Net
Total(SF) Balance(CY)Name

Area (SF) Raw Volumes (CY) Comp/Ratio Compact (CY)

9,732

333,995

343,727

Subgrade Sections Notes

Removal Items

CELTIC SONG SUBDIVISION

SUMMARY

SUMMARY



Balance(CY)
Cut(SF) Fill(SF) OnGrade(SF) Cut(CY) Fill(CY) Cut Fill Cut(CY) Fill(CY) Change /.1'

OFF Celtic Way 5,983 3,154 595 99 63 1.00 1.00 99 63 36 Export 36

ONS Lots 152,762 119,681 4,362 37,206 18,836 1.00 1.00 37,206 18,836 18,370 Export 1,026
ONS Ukelele Circle 41,294 15,083 813 9,893 1,288 1.00 1.00 9,893 1,288 8,605 Export 212

Subtotal: 194,056 134,764 5,175 47,099 20,124 1.00 1.00 47,099 20,124 26,975 Export 1,238

Site Total 200,039 137,918 5,770 47,198 20,187 1.00 1.00 47,198 20,187 27,011 Export 1,274

Net
Total(SF) Balance(CY)Name

Area (SF) Raw Volumes (CY) Comp/Ratio Compact (CY)

9,732

276,805
57,190

333,995

343,727

CELTIC SONG SUBDIVISION DETAILS



CELTIC SONG SUBDIVISION EXISTING



CELTIC SONG SUBDIVISION PROPOSED





S
u

n
n

y
s
i
d

e
 
A

v
e

Clover Hills Dr

C
l
o
v
e
r
 
H

i
l
l
s
 
C

i
r

VASQUEZ, J & G

APN 006-09F-039

PARCEL 4 PM 202405

1327 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

SHIPPY, D & C

APN 006-09F-038

PARCEL 3 PM 202405

1301 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

K
L

E
E

B
 
F

A
M

I
L

Y
 
T

R
U

S
T

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
9

9
4

-
0

2
3

L
O

T
 
4

7
2

3
,
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
M

A
P

 
2

9
3

6
8

1

1
5

3
4

 
C

L
O

V
E

R
 
H

I
L

L
S

 
D

R
I
V

E

M
C

P
H

I
L

L
I
P

S
,
 
J

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
9

9
4

-
0

2
2

L
O

T
 
4

2
2

,
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
M

A
P

 
2

9
3

6
8

1

1
5

2
7

 
C

L
O

V
E

R
 
H

I
L

L
S

 
D

R
I
V

E

GOWANS, T & T

APN 001-994-020

LOT 420, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3121 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

CHAVEZ, G

APN 001-994-019

LOT 419, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3117 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

T
A

N
N

E
R

,
 
J
 
&

 
N

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
9

9
4

-
0

0
1

L
O

T
 
4

0
1

,
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
M

A
P

 
2

9
3

6
8

1

1
5

5
0

 
C

E
L

T
I
C

 
W

A
Y

INTERNATIONAL CHURCH OF THE

FOURSQUARE GOSPEL

APN 001-660-011

PARCEL N/A PM 368882

RESIDENTIAL

MORQUECHO, G

APN 001-66A-015

LOT 15 PM 368882

2748 SUNNYSIDE AVENUE

MCANANY C & V

APN 001-66A-016

LOT 16 PM 368882

1703 CELTIC WAY

STEPHENS, L&V

APN 001-66A-017

LOT 17 PM 368882

1707 CELTIC WAY

WENNER, G&S

APN 006-09F-043

PARCEL 1 PM 226644

1720 CELTIC WAY

TROWBRIDGE, D

APN 00609F072

PARCEL 3-B PM 350763

1363 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

Celtic Way

LOT 1

GROSS - 9,717 S.F.

NET - 5,151 S.F.

LOT 2

GROSS - 9,057 S.F.

NET - 5,681 S.F.

LOT 3

GROSS - 9,609 S.F.

NET - 5,696 S.F.

LOT 6

GROSS - 9,108 S.F.

NET - 5,719 S.F

LOT 5

GROSS - 9,088 S.F.

NET - 5,713 S.F.

LOT 4

GROSS - 9,801 S.F.

NET - 5,701 S.F.

LOT 7

GROSS - 9,897 S.F.

NET - 6,285 S.F.

LOT 8

GROSS - 16,851 S.F.

NET - 11,384 S.F.

LOT 9

GROSS - 13,576 S.F.

NET - 8,483 S.F.

LOT 10

GROSS - 7,848 S.F.

NET - 4,511 S.F.

LOT 11

GROSS - 7,194 S.F.

NET - 4,146 S.F.

LOT 12

GROSS - 7,194 S.F.

NET - 4,146 S.F.

LOT 13

GROSS - 7,094 S.F.

NET - 4,142 S.F.

LOT 14

GROSS -10,374 S.F.

NET - 6,787 S.F.

DETENTION

POND

12,504 S.F.

SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT

TO BE DEDICATED - 2,415 S.F.

LOT 15

GROSS - 6,259 S.F.

NET - 4,117 S.F.

LOT 16

GROSS - 6,268 S.F.

NET - 4,132 S.F.

LOT 17

GROSS - 6,286 S.F.

NET - 4,147 S.F.

LOT 18

GROSS - 6,304 S.F.

NET - 4,152 S.F.

LOT 19

GROSS - 6322 S.F.

NET - 4,176 S.F.

LOT 20

GROSS - 6,341 S.F.

NET - 4,197 S.F.

LOT 21

GROSS - 6,717 S.F.

NET - 3,771 S.F.

LOT 22

GROSS - 7,083 S.F.

NET - 3,350 S.F.

N
e

w
c
a

s
t
l
e

 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N

ZONED

AR

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

AR

ZONED

AR

ZONED

AR

A
R

E
A

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
D

E
D

I
C

A
T

E
D

1
.
3
2
 
A

C
R

E
S

 
(
5
7
,
4
2
6
.
9
7
 
S

F
)

A
R

E
A

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
D

E
D

I
C

A
T

E
D

1
.
3
2
 
A

C
R

E
S

 
(
5
7
,
4
2
6
.
9
7
 
S

F
)

LOT 23

GROSS - 6.710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 24

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 25

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 26

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 27

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 28

GROSS - 7,064 S.F.

NET - 3,337 S.F.

LOT 35

GROSS - 6,424 S.F.

NET - 2,901 S.F.

LOT 34

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 33

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 32

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 31

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 30

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 29

GROSS - 6,414 S.F.

NET - 2,892 S.F.

D
W

B
E

D
 2

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
8
'0

" X
 1

4
'8

"

D
W

B
E

D
 2

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
8
'0

" X
 1

4
'8

"

D W

BED 2
11'7" X 11'0"

BED 3
11'7" X 11'0"

BED 3
18'0" X 14'8"

(Existing / Public)

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
I
T

L
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
L
:
\
N

d
r
i
v
e
\
D

w
g
s
\
8
2
4
1
6
-
C

a
m

b
r
i
d
g
e
E

s
t
a
t
e
s
-
B

a
i
l
e
y
A

s
s
o
c
\
C

I
V

I
L
\
S

t
a
g
e
 
O

n
e
 
B

a
i
l
e
y
 
M

a
p
.
d
w

g

J
B

/
N

I
B

C
A

D
 
2

0
1

8

N
I
B

J
u

n
e

 
4

,
 
2

0
1

9

T
-
1

6

SITE PLAN

VICINITY MAP

ENGINEER
OWNER / DEVELOPER

1150 LAMOILLE HIGHWAY

(775) 738 - 8058

ELKO, NEVADA 89801

BAILEY AND ASSOCIATES LLC.

WWW.SUMMITNV.COM

NITIN@SUMMITNV.COM

TENTATIVE MAP FOR

CAMBRIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION

ELKO                   ELKO COUNTY                    NEVADA

SUMMITENGINEERING

CORPORATION

TM

JON BAILEY

780 WEST SILVER STREET

ELKO, NEVADA 89801

H

U

M

B

O

L

D

T

R

I
V

E

R

R
IV

E
R

H
U

M

B
O

L
D

T

SITE

INTERSTATE 80

I

N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 

8

0

I
N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 
8

0

N

ELKO, NEVADA

ATTN: JON BAILEY

           775-385-3659

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

R/WEXISTING(e)

GTV.

I.E.

L.P.

L

L.F.

INT.

H.P.

HORIZ.

H.C.

F.H.

G.B.

G.

FLG.

F

L

F.F.C.

F.G.

F.F.

E.G.

FRONT FACE OF CURB

GATE VALVE

LENGTH

INVERT ELEVATION

INTERSECTION

HORIZONTAL

LINEAL FEET

HIGH POINT

HANDICAPPED

LOW POINT

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

FINISHED FLOOR

FINISHED GRADE

EXISTING GRADE

FLANGE

GAS

FIRE HYDRANT

FLOW LINE

GRADE BREAK

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

TELE.

TYP.

W

V.C.

V.P.I.

TOE

TOP

T.C.

T.B.

STD.

S.D.

T

SHT.

STA.

S.S.

S.W.

S

S.G.

E.

E.C.

EXIST.

E.V.C.

ELEV.

C.R.

DET.

D.I.

CLR

C.P.

C

L

CONST.

CONC.

B.W.

C.B.

B.C.

B.V.C.

B.F.

AGG.

A.C. ASPHALTIC CONCRETE

BEGIN VERTICAL CURVE

BACK OF SIDEWALK

BOTTOM OF FOOTING

END OF VERTICAL CURVE

CLEARANCE

DETAIL

ELEVATION

EXISTING

ELECTRICAL

END OF CURVE

CURB RETURN

DROP INLET

CONCRETE PIPE

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

CONCRETE

CATCH BASIN

CENTERLINE

BEGIN CURVE

CONSTRUCT

AGGREGATE

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

.............

R

R.C.P.

R.P.

RT.

REF.

P.U.E.

Q100

Q10

(R)

P

L

P.R.C.

P.V.C.

P.O.

PCC

PI.

M.D.D

L.P.

P.

LT.

RIGHT OF WAY

VERT. POINT OF INTERSECTION

TELEPHONE

TOP OF CURB

VERTICAL CURVE

TOP OF SLOPE

TOE OF SLOPE

THRUST BLOCK

CURVE DELTA

TYPICAL

WATER

SIDEWALK

SANITARY SEWER

STANDARD

SUBGRADE

TANGENT

STORM DRAIN

SHEET

STATION

SLOPE

POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE

POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE

POINT OF INTERSECTION

REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE

PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

100-YEAR STORM FLOW

POINT OF COMPOUND CURV.

PROPERTY LINE

REFERENCE

RADIUS POINT

10-YEAR STORM FLOW

RADIUS

RIGHT

RADIAL

MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY

LOW POINT

PAD ELEVATION

PUSH ON

LEFT

NITIN I. BHAKTA                                                              P.E. #15494

M.H. MANHOLE

BASIS OF ELEVATION

BASIS OF BEARINGS

U.S.C. & G.S. BENCHMARK #S141, DATED 1929

ELVATION REPORTED AS

5183.54' ABOVE SEA LEVEL

IS THE NORTH PROPERTY LINE  OF SAID PARCEL IN SECTION 17 

T. 34 N., R. 55 E., M.D.B. & M. TAKEN AS N 89° 41' 39" E

ABBREVIATIONS

SHEET INDEX

CODES, THE CITY CODES SHALL PREVAIL.

OF CONFLICT BETWEEN ANY PORTION OF THESE PLANS AND CITY

APPLICABLE STATUTES, CITY ORDINANCES, AND CODES. IN THE EVENT

AND GUIDELINES, AND ARE IN SUBSTANTIAL COMPLIANCE WITH 

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PROCEDURES

THESE PLANS (SHEETS T-1 OF 6 THROUGH D-1 OF 6) HAVE BEEN

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

SPECIFICATIONS

TELEPHONE

TELEVISION

ELECTRIC

UTILITIES

PROJECT DATA

TOTAL RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA = 1.32 ACRES (57,426.97 SF)

TOTAL SUBDIVIDED AREA = 8.02 ACRES 

LAND USE CLASSIFICATION

R1 (RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY) 

FLOOD PLAIN:

EASEMENTS:

ALONG THE SIDES AND REAR  LOT LINES AND A 7.50' DRAINAGE

ALL LOTS TO CONTAIN A 5.50' UTILITY AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT

BASED ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR THE

CITY OF ELKO, 32007C5608E, DATED SEPTEMBER 4, 2013

THE ENTIRE SITE LIES OUTSIDE THE 100 YEAR FLOOD PLAIN

ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL CONFORM TO THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION (CURRENT EDITION AND ANY APPURTENANT

SUPPLEMENTS) SPONSORED AND DISTRIBUTED BY RENO, SPARKS,

WASHOE COUNTY, AND THE RECOMMENDATIONS ESTABLISHED BY THE

SOILS INVESTIGATION FOR THIS SITE.

GAS ~  SOUTHWEST GAS CORPORATION

~  NV ENERGY

~  SATVIEW BROADBAND LLC

~  FRONTIER COMMUNICATION

~  CITY OF ELKO

~  CITY OF ELKOSANITARY SEWER

WATER

GARBAGE UTILITIES ~  ELKO SANITATION (CITY LANDFILL)

AND UTILITY EASEMENT ALONG CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY

SITE INFO:

BASED UPON THE CITY OF ELKO AND BLM HISTORIC DATA THE

SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS BEEN EXCLUSIVELY USED AS

OPEN RANGE.

TOTAL UNITS = 35 LOTS

LOCATION:

THIS SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 34 NORTH

RANGE 55 EAST IN ELKO, NEVADA

ESTIMATED WATER USAGE = 39.20 ACRE FEET PER YEAR

ESTIMATED SEWER CONTRIBUTIONS = 12,250 GALLONS PER DAY

THIS PROPOSED SUBDIVISION IS LOCATED IN SECTION 17, T 34 N, R 55 E. MDB&M.

THE REQUIRED FIRE FLOW FOR THIS DEVELOPMENT WILL BE 

    A MINIMUM OF 1,500 GPM FOR 2 HOURS, FOR RESIDENTIAL 

    TYPE V-B CONSTRUCTION.

T-1 ..... TITLE SHEET

N-1 ..... GENERAL NOTES SHEET

S-1 ..... TENTATIVE MAP

G-1 ..... GRADING PLAN

U-1 ..... UTILITY PLAN

D-1 ..... DETAIL SHEET

NET AREA ~ (TOTAL AREA - RIGHT-OF-WAY AREA) = 6.70 ACRES 

1. THE PARCEL MAP FOR ALAN & JULIE DUEWEL ~ RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY

RECORDER ON MARCH 14, 1994 AS FILE NO. 350763.

2. THE PARCEL MAP FOR EDWARD JAFFE ~ RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY RECORDER

ON FEBRUARY 27, 1985 AS FILE NO. 202405.

3. THE PARCEL MAP FOR GREGORY & SHERRY WENNER ~ RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE ELKO

COUNTY RECORDER ON MARCH 27, 1987 AS FILE NO. 226644.

4. THE FINAL MAP OF CLOVER HILLS SUBDIVISION ~ RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY

RECORDER ON JULY 3, 1990 AS FILE NO. 293681.

5. THE PARCEL MAP FOR C G PROPERTIES INC. ~ RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY

RECORDER ON JULY 19, 1989 AS FILE NO. 279073

REFERENCES

JBAILEYPE@GMAIL.COM

OFFERED FOR DEDICATION



H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

 
S

H
E

E
T

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

N
-
1

6

LEGEND

T

”

E

SILT FENCE

STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES

SLOPE STABILIZATION

3)

CWM

SWM

RVG

EROSION CONTROL NOTES

LEGEND

SIGNAGE & STRIPING NOTES

GENERAL NOTES

W



S
u
n
n
y
s
i
d
e
 
A

v
e

Clover Hills Dr

C
l
o
v
e
r
 
H

i
l
l
s
 
C

i
r

VASQUEZ, J & G

APN 006-09F-039

PARCEL 4 PM 202405

1327 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

SHIPPY, D & C

APN 006-09F-038

PARCEL 3 PM 202405

1301 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

K
L

E
E

B
 
F

A
M

I
L

Y
 
T

R
U

S
T

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
9

9
4

-
0

2
3

L
O

T
 
4

7
2

3
,
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
M

A
P

 
2

9
3

6
8

1

1
5

3
4

 
C

L
O

V
E

R
 
H

I
L

L
S

 
D

R
I
V

E

M
C

P
H

I
L

L
I
P

S
,
 
J

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
9

9
4

-
0

2
2

L
O

T
 
4

2
2

,
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
M

A
P

 
2

9
3

6
8

1

1
5

2
7

 
C

L
O

V
E

R
 
H

I
L

L
S

 
D

R
I
V

E

GOWANS, T & T

APN 001-994-020

LOT 420, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3121 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

CHAVEZ, G

APN 001-994-019

LOT 419, SUBDIVISION MAP 293681

3117 CLOVER HILLS CIRCLE

T
A

N
N

E
R

,
 
J
 
&

 
N

A
P

N
 
0

0
1

-
9

9
4

-
0

0
1

L
O

T
 
4

0
1

,
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N
 
M

A
P

 
2

9
3

6
8

1

1
5

5
0

 
C

E
L

T
I
C

 
W

A
Y

INTERNATIONAL CHURCH OF THE

FOURSQUARE GOSPEL

APN 001-660-011

PARCEL N/A PM 368882

RESIDENTIAL

MORQUECHO, G

APN 001-66A-015

LOT 15 PM 368882

2748 SUNNYSIDE AVENUE

MCANANY C & V

APN 001-66A-016

LOT 16 PM 368882

1703 CELTIC WAY

STEPHENS, L&V

APN 001-66A-017

LOT 17 PM 368882

1707 CELTIC WAY

WENNER, G&S

APN 006-09F-043

PARCEL 1 PM 226644

1720 CELTIC WAY

TROWBRIDGE, D

APN 00609F072

PARCEL 3-B PM 350763

1363 ROYAL CREST DRIVE

Celtic Way

LOT 1

GROSS - 9,717 S.F.

NET - 5,151 S.F.

LOT 2

GROSS - 9,057 S.F.

NET - 5,681 S.F.

LOT 3

GROSS - 9,609 S.F.

NET - 5,696 S.F.

LOT 6

GROSS - 9,108 S.F.

NET - 5,719 S.F

LOT 5

GROSS - 9,088 S.F.

NET - 5,713 S.F.

LOT 4

GROSS - 9,801 S.F.

NET - 5,701 S.F.

LOT 7

GROSS - 9,897 S.F.

NET - 6,285 S.F.

LOT 8

GROSS - 16,851 S.F.

NET - 11,384 S.F.

LOT 9

GROSS - 13,576 S.F.

NET - 8,483 S.F.

LOT 10

GROSS - 7,848 S.F.

NET - 4,511 S.F.

LOT 11

GROSS - 7,194 S.F.

NET - 4,146 S.F.

LOT 12

GROSS - 7,194 S.F.

NET - 4,146 S.F.

LOT 13

GROSS - 7,094 S.F.

NET - 4,142 S.F.

LOT 14

GROSS -10,374 S.F.

NET - 6,787 S.F.

DETENTION

POND

12,504 S.F.

SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT

TO BE DEDICATED - 2,415 S.F.

LOT 15

GROSS - 6,259 S.F.

NET - 4,117 S.F.

LOT 16

GROSS - 6,268 S.F.

NET - 4,132 S.F.

LOT 17

GROSS - 6,286 S.F.

NET - 4,147 S.F.

LOT 18

GROSS - 6,304 S.F.

NET - 4,152 S.F.

LOT 19

GROSS - 6322 S.F.

NET - 4,176 S.F.

LOT 20

GROSS - 6,341 S.F.

NET - 4,197 S.F.

LOT 21

GROSS - 6,717 S.F.

NET - 3,771 S.F.

LOT 22

GROSS - 7,083 S.F.

NET - 3,350 S.F.

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N

ZONED

AR

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

RESIDENTIAL

ZONED

AR

ZONED

AR

ZONED

AR

A
R

E
A

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
D

E
D

I
C

A
T

E
D

1
.
3
2
 
A

C
R

E
S

 
(
5
7
,
4
2
6
.
9
7
 
S

F
)

A
R

E
A

 
T

O
 
B

E
 
D

E
D

I
C

A
T

E
D

1
.
3
2
 
A

C
R

E
S

 
(
5
7
,
4
2
6
.
9
7
 
S

F
)

LOT 23

GROSS - 6.710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 24

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 25

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 26

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 27

GROSS - 6,710 S.F.

NET - 3,750 S.F.

LOT 28

GROSS - 7,064 S.F.

NET - 3,337 S.F.

LOT 35

GROSS - 6,424 S.F.

NET - 2,901 S.F.

LOT 34

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 33

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 32

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 31

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 30

GROSS - 6,100 S.F.

NET - 3,250 S.F.

LOT 29

GROSS - 6,414 S.F.

NET - 2,892 S.F.

D
W

B
E

D
 2

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
8
'0

" X
 1

4
'8

"

D
W

B
E

D
 2

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
1
'7

" X
 1

1
'0

"

B
E

D
 3

1
8
'0

" X
 1

4
'8

"

D W

BED 2
11'7" X 11'0"

BED 3
11'7" X 11'0"

BED 3
18'0" X 14'8"

(Existing / Public)

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

T
E

N
T

A
T

I
V

E
 
M

A
P

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

S
-
1

6



S
u
n
n
y
s
i
d
e
 
A

v
e

Clover Hills Dr

C
l
o
v
e
r
 
H

i
l
l
s
 
C

i
r

Celtic Way

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N

5

2

3

0

5

2

3

5

5

2

2

5

5

2

2

0

5

2

1

5

5

2

1

0

5

2

0

5

5

2

0

0

5
1

9
5

5

1

9

0

5

1

8

5

5

1

8

0

5

2

1

5

5

2

1

0

5

2

0

5

5

2

0

0

5

2

2

0

5

2

2

5

5

2

3

0

(Existing / Public)

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

G
R

A
D

I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

G
-
1

6



S
u
n
n
y
s
i
d
e
 
A

v
e

Clover Hills Dr

C
l
o
v
e
r
 
H

i
l
l
s
 
C

i
r

Celtic Way

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

N
e
w

c
a
s
t
l
e
 
C

i
r
c
l
e

8" SANITARY SEWER - 254.00

8
"
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
-
 
3
9
6
.
2
0

N
 
0
0
°
1
8
'
2
1
"
 
W

 
3
9
6
.
2
0

8
"
 
W

A
T

E
R

 
-
 
4
6
7
.
4
1

2

7

.

9

1

4

9

.

5

0

8
"
 
W

A
T

E
R

 
-
 
4
5
5
.
7
4

18" STORM DRAIN - 231.47

9

4

.
0

5

8" WATER - 200.27

N

LOT 1

.

LOT 2

LOT 3

LOT 6

LOT 5

LOT 4

LOT 7

LOT 8

LOT 9 LOT 10 LOT 11 LOT 12 LOT 13 LOT 14

DETENTION

POND

12,504 S.F.

SEWER ACCESS EASEMENT

TO BE DEDICATED - 2415 S.F.

LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 19

LOT 20

LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23

LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 27

LOT 28

LOT 35

LOT 34

LOT 33

LOT 32

LOT 31

LOT 30

LOT 29

(Existing / Public)

H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

U
-
1

6



H
O

R
I
Z

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

V
E

R
T

:

A
P

P
'
D

B
Y

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

.

S
C

A
L
E

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

0
5

8
 
 
F

A
X

:
 
(
7

7
5

)
 
7

3
8

-
8

2
6

7

1
1

5
0

 
L

A
M

O
I
L

L
E

 
H

W
Y

.
,
 
E

L
K

O
,
 
N

V
.
 
8

9
8

0
1

S
U

M
M

I
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

I
O

N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

e
m

a
i
l
:
 
N

i
t
i
n

@
s
u

m
m

i
t
n

v
.
c
o

m

O
F

S
H

E
E

T

1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

N
O

N
E

C
I
V

I
L
 
I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
P

L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
A

M
B

R
I
D

G
E

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 
S

U
B

D
I
V

I
S

I
O

N

D
E

T
A

I
L
 
S

H
E

E
T

E
L
K

O
E

L
K

O
 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
N

E
V

A
D

A
*

A
C

A
D

1
4

*

D
-
1

6

SIDEWALK DETAIL

RAMP OUTSIDE CURB RETURN

RAMP IN CURB RETURN

SECTION C-C

TYPE I CURB RAMP

POST CURB

P.C.C. JOINT DETAIL

STREET LIGHT, HYDRANT, & SIGN LOCATION

TYPE 1 CURB & GUTTER  DETAIL

DUCTILE IRON PIPE, PVC, PE & HDPE PIPE

TRENCH EXCAVATION & BACKFILL DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

NOT TO SCALE

NOT TO SCALE

1

2

4

87

5

3

POST CURB

NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE

NEWCASTLE CIRCLE

TYPICAL STRUCTURAL SECTION

SEWER

WATER

PHONE CABLE

POWER



Legal Description for Parcel # 001-660-041

Legal Description
Sect/
Lot

Town/
Block Range Acres

 PARCEL A FILE 279073

 LOCATED IN  17  34N  55E

 MDB&M

 PLUS 968.00SF PER 805/584(CORRECTION)

 NEW TOTAL: 8.02A

 SQUARE FOOTAGE GAINED DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

 A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NE4 OF SEC  17  34N  55E

 MDB&M, CITY OF ELKO, ELKO COUNTY STATE OF NEVADA

 MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

 COMM AT THE NW CORNER OF PARCEL B AS SHOWN ON

 THE PARCEL MAP FOR CG PROPERTIES INC FILED IN THE

 OFFICE OF THE ELKO COUNTY RECORDER AS FILE NUMBER

 279073 SAID CORNER BEING CORNER NUMBER 1 THE POB;

 TH: N 89°43'59" E ALONG THE N'LY BOUNDARY OF

 SAID PARCEL B A DISTANCE OF 2.04' TO CORNER 2, A

 POINT ON THE EXTENDED WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF CLOVER

 HILLS SUBDIVISION, PHASE 4;

 TH: S 0°32'55" EAST, ALONG THE W'LY BOUNDARY AND

 THE EXTENDED W'LY BOUNDARY OF SAID SUBDIVISION, A

 DISTANCE OF 603.22' TO CORNER 3, A POINT ON THE

 S'LY BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL B;

 TH: S 89°46'10" W, A DISTANCE OF 1.17' TO CORNER

 4, THE S'LY CORNER OF SAID PARCEL B;

 TH: N 0°37'52" W, ALONG THE W'LY BOUNDARY OF

 SAID PARCEL B, A DISTANCE OF 603.22' TO CORNER 1,

 THE POB.

 



Agenda Item # I.A.3 

Created on 6/18/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Conditional Use Permit No. 5-

19, filed by Bailey & Associates LLC., to designate APN 001-926-111 as RMH-1 

zoning district for occupancy of mobile homes on rented or leased sites in mobile 

home parks, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  July 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Bailey & Associates is proposing a mobile home park 

development on the subject property which has previously had CUP approval for an 

RMH-2 designation as well as tentative map approval. 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Deny Conditional Use Permit 5-19 based on the facts and 

findings as presented in Staff Report dated June 18, 2019 
 

If Planning Commission recommends approval: Table Conditional Use Permit No. 5-19 

until a complete application is received.  

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated June 18, 2019. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Bailey & Associates. LLC 

780 West Silver Street #104 

Elko, NV 89801 

jbaileype@gmail.com 

 

 

 





Page 1 of 14

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: June 18, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: July 2, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.A.3
APPLICATION NUMBER: Conditional Use Permit 5-19
APPLICANT: Bailey & Associates LLC.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Terminus of Daisy Drive and Primrose Ln.

The property owner is proposing a mobile home park on the RMH zoned property. The
property doesn’t have a specific designation of RMH-1 and therefore the CUP is required to
designate the zoning RMH-1.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND DENIAL, subject to findings of facts as stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 2 of 14

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-926-111

PROPERTY SIZE: 7.31 acres

EXISTING ZONING: RMH – Residential Mobile Home

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Undeveloped

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by developed land to the south with both RMH-1 and RMH-3,
Residential Mobile Home 1 & 3, LI- Light Industrial undeveloped land to the west, GI-
General Industrial developed land to the east and Elko County property to the north which
is developed as residential.

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently undeveloped.
The property has generally moderate slope.
The property will be accessed from Primrose Lane and Daisy Drive.
The property is not in the floodway and flood zone.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLANS AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan-Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan-Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Code 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Code 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Code 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Code 3-2-18 Conditional Use Permits
 City of Elko Code 3-5 Mobile Home Parks, Mobile Home, Manufactured Home

Subdivisions and Recreational Vehicle Parks
 City of Elko Code 3-8 Flood Plain Management

Background Information
 The application for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) was filed as required under City

Code 3-5-1.
 The area is currently zoned RMH, Residential Mobile Home.
 The area is located at the terminus of Daisy Drive and Primrose Lane



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 3 of 14

 The proposed area was previously approved a CUP 4-96 for a designation of RMH-2 for a
mobile home subdivision. This approval was in conjunction with the Tentative Map 4-96
for Phase 1.

 A Tentative Map 4-96 was approved by City Council for Phase 1, on June 11, 1996.  The
conditions set by Planning Commission stated that all mobile/manufactured home
dwelling units constructed within the subdivision shall be placed on permanent
foundations. The CUP 4-96 qualified the approval as an RMH-2 subdivision. The subject
parcel in the proposed CUP was not included in the Final Map approved in 1996. The only
properties developed with that approval were those along Primrose Lane to Larkspur Ct.

 A new Tentative Map 3-14 was approved by City Council for Phase 2 (Daisy Drive) and
Phase 3 (subject parcel) on May 27, 2014.

 A Final Map was approved by City Council for Phase 2 on June 10, 2014. Phase 2 was
constructed and final acceptance by City Council on October 28, 2014. The Final Map for
Phase 2 was recorded on 10/30/2014. The Final Map for Phase 3 was not recorded in
accordance with the NRS and all proceedings and approvals for the subdivision have
expired.

 The property is not located in the Redevelopment Area.

MASTER PLAN

Land Use

1. Land Use is shown as Medium Density Residential.
2. Supporting zone districts for Medium Density Residential are Single Family/Multi Family

(R), Single Family (R1), Two Family (R2), Planned Unit Development (PUD), Residential
Office (RO), Residential Business (RB), Mobile Home Subdivision (RMH-2), and
Manufactured Home Subdivision (RMH-3).

3. RMH – Mobile Home Residential is a supporting zone district for the Residential High
Density which are densities of nine (9) units per acre or greater. The proposed
development consists of 44 units which would be a density of 6.01 units per acre. The
proposed density is consistent with the Residential Medium Density designation of 4-8
units per acre.

4. High Density Residential is the City’s most intensive residential land use designation. This
classification is intended for multiple-family homes and multistory dwellings in addition
to single- family residences. This land use category serves as a transitional land use
between medium-density residential, and commercial or industrial uses.  High density
residential is also appropriate along major transportation corridors, in the downtown core
and near neighborhood centers.

5. Uses of land must comply with the Elko City Code, and must be compatible with, and not
frustrate, this Master Plan’s goals and policies.

6. Objective 1: Promote a diverse mix of housing options to meet the needs of a variety of
lifestyles, incomes, and age groups.

7. Objective 8: Encourage new development that does not negatively impact County-wide
natural systems, or public/federal lands such as waterways, wetlands, drainages,
floodplains etc., or pose a danger to human health and safety.

8. Although the proposed development meets Objectives 1 and 8, the Master Plan doesn’t
address location of development in the objectives.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 4 of 14

The proposed RMH-1 is not in conformance with the Master Plan. The proposed development is
in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master Plan based on meeting Objectives 1
& 8 and is consistent with the density requirements of Medium Density Residential. The proposed
development is not in conformance with the Land Use Component as RMH is listed as a
corresponding zoning district for High Density Residential. The proposed development does not
meet the density requirements for High Density Residential. Additionally, we are placing a high
density use between city medium density and very low density in the county which is in
inconsistent with the Transportation component of the Master Plan.
Transportation

1. The area will be accessed from Primrose Lane and Daisy Drive.
2. Primrose Lane and Daisy Drive are not classified in the Transportation Component, but

would function as a Residential Local Street.
3. With 100% occupancy, the proposed development is expected to generate approximately

421 Average Daily Trips based on 9.57 trips/townhome (Source ITE trip Generation, 8th
Edition). Ingress/Egress to the subdivision will be split between Daisy Drive and Primrose
Lane. The previously approved Tentative Map showed 30 dwelling units which would
generate approximately 287 average daily trips. The proposed development results in an
increase of 133 average daily trips. High density residential is appropriate along major
transportation corridors.

The Transportation Component of the Master Plan states that concentrations of high density
residential development should be provided along a minor arterial route. The proposed
development is not in conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN

 A portion of the property is located within the 30-year capture zone for City of Elko well.
 The proposed development would be connected to the City’s programmed sanitary sewer

system.

The proposed development under the conditional use permit and resultant land use is in
conformance with wellhead protection plan.

SECTION 3-2-3 GENERAL PROVISIONS

 Section 3-2-3 (C) 1 of City code specifies use restrictions. The following use restrictions
shall apply.

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
“principal uses permitted’ in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as
principal uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as “conditional uses
permitted” may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of
location, design, construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in
this chapter or imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

Other uses may apply under certain conditions with application to the City.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 5 of 14

 Section 3-2-3(D) states that “No land may be used or structure erected where the land is
held by the planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of
flooding, concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation,
extreme topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features
likely to be harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The
planning commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing the
particular facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the right to
present evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she so desires,
whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of
unsuitability.”

The proposed designation of RMH-1 is required to have an approval as a conditional use as
required in ECC 3-5-1. Planning Commission is to determine that the proposed designation is in
conformance with 3-2-3(D) and is a suitable use for the land.

SECTION 3-2-4 ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONING DISTRICTS

1. Section 3-2-4(B)  Required Conformity To District Regulations: The regulations set forth
in this chapter for each zoning district shall be minimum regulations and shall apply
uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land, except as provided in this subsection.

2. Section 3-2-4(B)(4) stipulates that no yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof shall
be reduced in dimension or area below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

The proposed use is in conformance with Elko City Code 3-2-4.

SECTION 3-2-17 TRAFFIC, ACCESS, PARKING AND LOADING REGULATIONS

 Conformance with this section is required. Off street parking will be required to comply
with 3-2-17 as the property develops.

The proposed use conforms to section 3-2-17 of Elko city code.

SECTION 3-2-18 CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS

General Regulations:

1. Certain uses of land within designated zoning districts shall be permitted as principal uses
only upon issuance of a conditional use permit. Subject to the requirements of this chapter,
other applicable chapters, and where applicable to additional standards established by the
Planning Commission, or the City Council, a conditional use permit for such uses may be
issued.

2. Every conditional use permit issued, including a permit for a mobile home park, shall
automatically lapse and be of no effect one (1) year from the date of its issue unless the
permit holder is actively engaged in developing the specific property to the use for which
the permit was issued.

3. Every conditional use permit issued shall be personal to the permittee and applicable only
to the specific use and to the specific property for which it is issued. However, the
Planning Commission may approve the transfer of the conditional use permit to another
owner. Upon issuance of an occupancy permit for the conditional use, signifying that all
zoning and site development requirements imposed in connection with the permit have
been satisfied, the conditional use permit shall thereafter be transferable and shall run with



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 6 of 14

the land, whereupon the maintenance or special conditions imposed by the permit, as well
as compliance with other provisions of the zoning district, shall be the responsibility of the
property owner.

4. Conditional use permits shall be reviewed from time to time by City personnel.
Conditional use permits may be formally reviewed by the Planning Commission. In the
event that any or all of the conditions of the permit or this chapter are not adhered to, the
conditional use permit will be subject to revocation.

SECTION 3-5 MOBILE HOME PARKS, MOBILE HOME, MANUFACTURED HOME
SUBDIVISIONS AND RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKS

3-5-1: Intent: Within selected geographical areas that are designated for mobile homes on the city
general plan map, adopted by the city council on January 15, 1974, or zoned RMH on the zoning
map, the city council, through conditional use permits, after review by the planning commission,
may regulate by districting, the proposed mobile home residential use, manufactured home
residential use, and recreational vehicle parks. When such districts are designated, the provisions
of this chapter shall prevail over any requirements underlying by virtue of the zoning previously
adopted.

3-5-2: Districts:
RMH-1: Areas suitable for development, placement and occupancy of mobile homes for
residential purposes on rented or leased sites in mobile home parks.

3-5-3: Definitions:
MOBILE HOME PARK: A parcel or tract of land having as its principal use the rental, leasing or
occupancy of space by mobile homes on a permanent or semipermanent basis, including
accessory buildings or uses customarily incidental thereto.

3-5-4: Uses Permitted and Minimum Standards: A. Uses Permitted:

Accessory buildings

Community recreation buildings and facilities, laundry, car wash, boat or storage facilities
serving the mobile home or RV park; provided, however, that the architectural design of all
non-mobile home structures shall be subject to approval by the planning commission prior to
issuance of any conditional use permit, and all applicable state and city requirements.

The developer is not proposing any community recreation buildings or facilities.

Management offices (RMH-1 and RMH-4 only). One or more single-family dwellings or
mobile homes used exclusively for office and living quarters by the operator or manager of the
mobile home or RV park. The architectural design of a non-mobile home office shall be subject
to approval by the planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit.

The developer is not proposing any management office on site.

Mobile homes, manufactured homes, RVs. One mobile home, manufactured home or RV per
space, including doublewide or expandable mobile home units.

Residential uses

B. Standards For Development; Requirement:
1. Minimum Overall Area:



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 7 of 14

a. RMH-1: Two (2) acres;

The proposed parcel area is 7.31 acres and meets the requirement of two (2) acres.

3. Maximum Building Height: The height of any building shall in no manner be such as to
create a nuisance or safety hazard for air traffic into and about the Elko Municipal Airport.

The development will be required to comply with the maximum building height.

3. Minimum Net Space Area: Minimum net space area for each mobile home, RV or
manufactured home:

a. RMH-1: Four thousand (4,000) square feet;

The proposed development meets the minimum net space area of 4,000 square feet.

4. Minimum Frontage Width: Minimum mobile home, RV or manufactured home space
frontage width:

a. RMH-1: Forty feet (40');

The proposed area is 7.31 acres and meets the requirement of two (2) acres.

5. Minimum Setback, Public Street: Minimum setback of any building, mobile home, RV or
manufactured home from a bordering public street line is fifteen feet (15'), except that
garages and carports shall be set back twenty feet (20') from the front lot line.

Setbacks are shown on the proposed plan and the developer will be required to comply with
setbacks with the placement of each mobile home..

6. Minimum Setback, Internal Street: Minimum setback from internal street in mobile home
parks is twelve feet (12'), except that garages and carports shall be set back twenty feet (20')
from the front lot line.

Setbacks are shown on the proposed plan and the developer will be required to comply with
setbacks with the placement of each mobile home..

7. Minimum Side, Rear Setbacks, Separations: Minimum side and rear setbacks or separation
for each mobile home, RV or manufactured home lot, where such side and rear does not
border on public or internal streets:

a. RMH-1: Five feet (5') from space side line; seven and one-half feet (71/2') from space
rear line.

Setbacks are shown on the proposed plan and the developer will be required to comply with
setbacks with the placement of each mobile home..

1. Expandable Sections, Separation Requirements: Expandable sections of a mobile home,
manufactured home or RV shall be considered a part of the mobile home, RV or
manufactured home proper for setback or separation requirements.

The developer is proposing mobile homes and not RV’s so this section of code does not apply.

9. Underground Utilities: All utilities shall be placed underground.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 8 of 14

10. Other Statutes And Regulations Applicable: Where applicable, all site preparation,
construction, mobile home, RV and manufactured home installation, utility connections and
occupancy shall be in accordance with the requirements of the Nevada statutes and
regulations of this code and ordinances.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

C. Transportation Systems Requirements
1. Access; Alignment And Grading Of Streets: All mobile home, RV or manufactured home

spaces shall be provided with safe and convenient vehicular access from public or private
streets. Alignment and grading of streets shall be properly adapted to topography.

The developer is proposing a private street through the mobile home park with a public utility
easement. The developer will provide the necessary information on the street construction and
grading in the site construction plans.

2. Street Surfacing: All streets shall have a paved all weather surface approved by the city
engineer and drained in a manner approved by the city engineer.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

3. Paved Curb Section: All streets shall have a paved, back of curb to back of curb section not
less than:

a. RMH-1: Forty two feet (42') in width;

The developer is proposing 42’ in width back of curb to back of curb section.

4. Curb/Gutter Sections; Sidewalk: All streets shall require curb/gutter sections on both sides
and have a five foot (5') paved sidewalk:

a. RMH-1: At least one side of street;

The developer is proposing required curb/gutter sections on both sides of the street and 5’
sidewalks on both sides of the street.

5. Off Street Parking: A minimum of two (2) off street parking spaces per mobile home or
manufactured home space shall be required.

The developer is proposing adequate off street parking spaces for each mobile home.

6. Emergency Vehicular Access: In all districts, adequate provisions for emergency vehicular
access during inclement weather shall be provided on internal streets.

The developer is proposing adequate emergency vehicular access throughout the mobile
home park.

2. Storm Drainage: Adequate storm drainage shall be provided and shall be reviewed by the
city engineer for his approval.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 9 of 14

3. Signs And Lighting: All streets shall be properly signed and lighted. Lighting systems to
be approved by the city engineer.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

D. General Requirements:

1. Paving: All vehicle parking spaces and driveways shall be paved with a hard surface
material.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

2. Recreation Or Open Space Area: The planning commission shall require mobile home and
RV parks to have at least one recreation area or usable open space accessible from all
spaces, the cumulative size of which recreation area shall not be less than:

The developer is proposing one recreational area within the mobile home park.

a. A minimum of two hundred (200) square feet of outdoor recreation area per mobile
home space or fifty (50) square feet per RV site shall be provided, exclusive of required
yards or setback area. The minimum size for any single outdoor recreation area shall be
two thousand four hundred (2,400) square feet in mobile home parks and one thousand
two hundred (1,200) square feet in RV parks, with a minimum width of twenty four feet
(24').

The developer is proposing one 8,800 sq. ft. recreational area within the mobile home
park. 44 spaces at 200 sq. ft. per mobile home would result in 8,800 sq. ft. required.

b. Parks catering to family use shall provide larger recreation areas and adequate
playgrounds. A minimum of three hundred (300) square feet of outdoor recreation area per
mobile home space or seventy five (75) square feet per RV site shall be provided,
exclusive of required yards or setback areas. All recreation areas and landscaping plans
shall be approved prior to issuance of a conditional use permit by the planning
commission.

3. Pedestrianways: When included as additions to required sidewalks, pedestrianways shall
have a minimum width of four feet (4') and shall be surfaced in concrete or hard surface
material.

The developer is not proposing any predestrianways and it doesn’t appear one would be
required.

4. Water Supply: An accessible, adequate, safe and potable supply of water for domestic
purposes shall be provided to each mobile home or manufactured home space or lot and
RV site, and proof of the same shall be provided to the planning commission before
approval of any conditional use permit. Such supply of water shall be in conformance with
any applicable Nevada statutes and regulations and city ordinances, and furnished through
a pipe distribution system directly connected to the city water service.

The developer is proposing connections to the City of Elko water service and meters at each
mobile home site.

5. Sewerage Facilities: An adequate and safe sewer system shall be provided to each mobile
home, manufactured home or RV space, lot or site. Such sewer system shall be in



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 10 of 14

conformance with any applicable Nevada statutes and regulations and city ordinances, and
directly connected through a pipe collection system to the city sewer facilities.

The developer is proposing connections to the City of Elko sewer service at each mobile home
site.

6. Refuse And Garbage: Storage, collection and disposal of garbage and refuse shall be in
conformance with any applicable Nevada statutes and regulations and city ordinances. In
mobile home and RV parks, one metal dumpster with lid per twenty five (25) spaces
located no more than one hundred fifty feet (150') from mobile home lots and RV sites
shall be required.

The developer is proposing two locations of trash collection for the park.

7. Fuel Supply And Storage: Installation of liquid petroleum gas or fuel oil containers within
a mobile home or manufactured home subdivision or mobile home or RV park shall be in
conformance with any applicable Nevada statutes and city ordinances.

8. Fire Protection: In every mobile home or RV park, mobile home subdivision or
manufactured home subdivision, fire hydrants shall be installed as may be required by the
fire department.

The developer is proposing fire hydrants and will be reviewed by the Fire Marshal with the
submittal of the site construction plans.

9. Tie Downs: Tie downs for all mobile homes shall be provided in accordance with state fire
marshal regulations and applicable Nevada statutes and regulations. Tie downs shall not
be required on RV sites.

10. Skirting:

a. Skirting shall be of durable materials suitable for exterior exposures, and be
installed in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions. It shall be
secured, as necessary, to assure stability, to minimize vibrations, to minimize
susceptibility to wind damage and to compensate for possible frost heave.

b. If combustion air for heat producing appliance is taken from within the under floor
area, ventilation shall be adequate to assure proper operation of the appliances.

c. Use of combustible material (such as hay, straw, cardboard, etc.) shall be
prohibited.

11. Fences: Mobile home and RV parks adjacent to residential zones shall be fenced with a
solid view screening decorative fence not more than six feet (6') nor less than three feet
(3') in height around the entire boundary of the park. However, no such fence over three
feet (3') in height shall be allowed within thirty feet (30') of the intersection of any two (2)
streets. The design and construction materials of said fence shall be subject to approval by
the planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit. (RMH-1 and
RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer is proposing to provide fencing along the property lines adjacent to the RMH-3
properties.



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 11 of 14

12. Floodplain: No mobile home or manufactured home subdivision, mobile home or RV park
which is proposed to be constructed below the 100-year floodplain elevation of the
Humboldt River and other drainage as defined by the U.S. army corps of engineers, shall
be approved by the planning commission.

The proposed mobile home park is not within a designated flood hazard area.

13. Grading, Erosion Protections; Avoidance Of Visual Scars On Hillsides; Protection Of
Underground Utility Lines: Whenever it may be necessary for the developer of a mobile
home, manufactured home subdivision, mobile home or RV park to cut and fill, or to alter
the contours of the land in any way, he shall comply with the provisions of the city
building code.

The developer will provide the necessary information in the site construction plans.

14. Management: The holder of a valid city business license for the operation of a mobile
home or RV park shall be responsible for compliance with this chapter and other
applicable ordinances (e.g., section 5-1-1 of this code) or Nevada statutes and regulations.
He/she shall maintain the mobile home or RV park in a neat, orderly and sanitary
condition at all times. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

15. Signs: All signs for the mobile home or RV park, including the height, size, location,
appearance and illumination of such signs, shall be subject to approval of the planning
commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit. No signs will be installed
without approval of said sign by the planning commission. The applicant shall submit a
plan showing the locations of such signs and architectural elevations showing the heights,
shapes, size and manner of illumination of the signs. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer has proposed a location for a sign but has not provided any information
regarding the size or architectural elevations.

16. Landscaping: Exposed ground surfaces in the park shall be covered with stone, screening
or other materials or protected with a vegetative growth in a well kept manner, either of
which is capable of preventing soil erosion and eliminating objectionable dust. (RMH-1
and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

17. Plan: A copy of the final approved plan for the mobile home or RV park shall be
conspicuously posted on the site near office, or as designated by the fire department and the
license holder shall be responsible for maintenance of the park as per the final approved
plan thereafter. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts only.)

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

18. Space Numbering: All spaces shall be numbered, and such number shall be posted in a
place clearly visible and conspicuous from the internal street. (RMH-1 and RMH-4 districts
only.)



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 12 of 14

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code as a condition of the
conditional use permit.

19. Electrical: All mobile home parks shall comply with the national electrical code, article
550, part B. All recreational vehicle parks shall comply with the national electrical code,
article 551, part B.

The developer will be required to comply with this section of code.

20. Public Telephone: At least one public telephone is required for a mobile home or RV park.

Staff feels that this requirement is dated and would not be required.

21. Dump Stations: Permitted dump stations in RV parks shall meet all applicable Nevada
statutes and regulations and city requirements.

RV’s will not be allowed in the mobile home park and therefore this section of code is not
applicable.

22. Fuel Cylinders: No extra or empty fuel cylinders are allowed to be stored on RV sites. Fuel
cylinders being used shall comply with the latest edition of NFPA 58 (standard for the
storage and handling of liquified petroleum gases).

RV’s will not be allowed in the mobile home park and therefore this section of code is not
applicable.

23. Other Requirements: Where this code does not address a particular problem, the use of the
latest edition of NFPA 501A (manufactured home installations, sites and communities),
501D (recreational vehicle parks and campgrounds) and 501C (fire safety criteria for
recreational vehicles) will be used. Wherever 501A, 501D and 501C and this code differ,
the requirements which are more stringent shall apply.

SECTION 3-8 FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT

1. The parcel is not located within a designated flood plain.

FINDINGS

1. The proposed development is not in conformance with the Land Use component of the
Master Plan.

2. The Transportation Component of the Master Plan states that concentrations of high
density residential development should be provided along a minor arterial route.

3. The proposed development is not in conformance with the existing transportation
infrastructure and the Transportation component of the Master Plan

4. The proposed development is in conformance with the City Wellhead Protection Program.
5. The proposed use is not consistent with surrounding land uses as a transitional use

between low density in the County and medium density in the City.
6. The proposed use is in conformance with City Code 3-5 Residential Mobile Home with

the approval of the Condition Use Permit



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 13 of 14

7. The proposed development is in conformance with 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-17, 3-8 and 3-2-18 of
the Elko City Code.

8. The prior approval of CUP 4-96 designated the parcel as RMH-2, mobile home
subdivision.

9. The proposed parcel had prior approval of Tentative Map 3-14 for Cedar Estates
Subdivision for an RMH-3 manufactured home subdivision.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Development Department recommends DENIAL of CUP 4-19 based on the following facts:

1. Proposed designation of RMH1 does not conform to the Master Plan.
a. Per Land Use page 17, RMH1 is considered a high-density residential use.  The

site is designated as Medium-Density Residential.  The Master Plan does not
distinguish based on number of units so whether there are 2 units or 150 units, it is
considered high-density.

b. Land Use page 24 stats that high-density residential uses should be located on
major arterials or collectors.  Access to this site is via residential local streets.
Other mobile home parks in town (Panorama and Bullion) all have direct access to
collector streets and would comply with this section of the Master Plan.

c. Transportation page 26 discusses the need to protect and enhance existing
neighborhoods by reducing regional traffic on residential local streets.  This
project, by its commercial nature, would most likely increase traffic beyond what
would occur if the property were developed at an RMH3 level.

d. Transportation page 26 also mentions that residential local streets are designed to
be pedestrian friendly.  The movement of mobile homes down these streets would
pose a danger to the health, safety, and welfare of the existing residents and
potentially interfere with their right to enjoy their property.

2. The property was designated as RMH3 with the approval of a previous Planning
Commission and Council action.  RMH3 is considered a sub-classification of zoning
and should be thought of the same way as any other Tentative Map with a Zone
Change.  The expiration of a Map does not revert the zoning back to the previous
category.

Engineering Department recommends DENIAL of CUP 4-19 based on the following facts:

1. Recommend the previously approved district of RMH-3 is maintained.

Public Works Department recommends DENIAL of CUP 4-19 based on the following facts:

1. Concerns running traffic through residential neighborhoods to a mobile home park.

If Planning Commission recommends APPROVAL of CUP 4-19 it should be TABLED until a
complete application is submitted:

The deficiencies in the application are:
1. Landscaping plan, details and information



CUP 5-19
Bailey & Associates, LLC
APN: 001-926-111

Page 14 of 14

2. All signs for the mobile home or RV park, including the height, size, location,
appearance and illumination of such signs, shall be subject to approval of the
planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit.

3. Mobile home and RV parks adjacent to residential zones shall be fenced with a
solid view screening decorative fence not more than six feet (6') nor less than three
feet (3') in height around the entire boundary of the park. However, no such fence
over three feet (3') in height shall be allowed within thirty feet (30') of the
intersection of any two (2) streets. The design and construction materials of said
fence shall be subject to approval by the planning commission prior to the issuance
of any conditional use permit.

4. The architectural design of a non-mobile home office shall be subject to approval
by the planning commission prior to the issuance of any conditional use permit.

5. The architectural design of all non-mobile home structures shall be subject to
approval by the planning commission prior to issuance of any conditional use
permit.





























1

SITE PLAN

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
B

Y
:

SHEET

1

OF

SHEET TITLE

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

:

J
O

B
 
N

O
:

S
C

A
L

E
:

J
D

B

J
D

B

- 5
-
1

3
-
1

9

- A
S

 
N

O
T

E
D

R
e

v
i
s
i
o

n
s

N
u

m
b

e
r

D
a

t
e

 
&

 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n

PLLC

P.E. NV# 17979

780 W. Silver #104 Elko, NV

(775)385-3659

JON D. BAILEY

registration

- - -

S
I
T

E
 
A

N
D

 
U

T
I
L
I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N

P
A

R
K

S
I
D

E
 
V

I
L
L
A

S
 
M

H
P

P

R

O

F

E

S

S
I
O

N

A

L

 

E

N

G

I

N
EE

R

-

S

T

A

T

E

 

O

F
 
N

E

V

A

D

A

N

o

.
17

9

7

9

JON D.

BAILEY

Exp. 12-31-20

CIVIL

-

PARKSIDE VILLAS WAY (PRIVATE)

PARKSIDE CT (PRIVATE)



Agenda Item # I.A.4. 

Created on 6/10/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

1-19, Ordinance No. 842, an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance, specifically 

Section 3-2-3 General Provisions, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 

ACTION 
 

2. Meeting Date:  July 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

4. Time Required: 20 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: At the May 7, 2019 meeting, Planning Commission took 

action to initiate an amendment to the City Zoning Ordinance Title 3, Chapter 2, 

Section 3; General Provisions. 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance 842 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt an 

ordinance which approves Zoning Ordinance Amendment 1-19 of the Elko City 

Code specifically Section 3-2-3. 
 

9. Findings: 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  





Page 1 of 9 Ord. 842

CITY OF ELKO
ORDINANCE NO. 842

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 3, CHAPTER 2, SECTION 3 OF THE ELKO
CITY CODE ENTITLED "GENERAL PROVISIONS" HEREBY ADDING A

REFERENCE TO CURB GUTTER AND SIDEWALK REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH
IN TITLE 8 PUBLIC WAYS AND PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend portions of the City Code pertaining to curb,
gutter and sidewalks in order to further promote orderly growth and development, and to protect
the interest, health, safety and general welfare of the public; and

WHEREAS, the City of Elko has determined that the proposed amendments further those goals;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Elko desires to amend Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 3 of the Elko Code,
and has followed all procedural requirements and legal noticing required per City Code and
N.R.S.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
ELKO, NEVADA

For amendment purposes, words which are bold and underlined are additions to the Code
and words which are bold and lined through are deletions from the Code.

SECTION 1. Title 3, Chapter 2, Section 3 of the Elko City Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:

3-2-3: GENERAL PROVISIONS:

A. Interpretation: In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this chapter shall
be held to be minimum requirements, shall be liberally construed in favor of the cityCity,
and shall not be deemed a limitation or repeal of any other power granted by the Nevada
Revised Statutes.

B. Street, And Utility and Other Public Improvement Requirements: The following
restrictions shall apply:

1. Generally, all lots shall abut and access a public street connecting with the public
street system in order to provide for orderly growth, vehicular circulation and to ensure
accessibility to utilities and emergency services. A condominium or townhome project
shall be considered one lot for purposes of this specific requirement.

2. Lots may abut and access a private street connecting with the public street system in
the following circumstances:



Page 2 of 9 Ord. 842

a. Within a PC (planned commercial) district in conformance with an approved
concept development plan.

b. Within an IBP (industrial business park) district in conformance with an approved
concept development plan.

c. Within a PUD (planned unit development) district in conformance with an
approved site development plan.

d. Within an RMH (residential mobile home) district in conformance with an
approved site development plan.

e. For residential, commercial or industrial developments involving four (4) or fewer
lots and where the length of the private street, from the nearest public street to the
lot being accessed, does not exceed six hundred eighty feet (680').

3. Building permits may be issued for lots which abut undedicated portions of a partly
dedicated public street.

4. A building permit shall not be issued for any lot for which city public sewerage and
water supply is not available, unless the city council grants a waiver of the mandatory
connection to public sewer requirement pursuant to subsection 9-5-61B of this code.

5. All utilities shall be placed underground, except for lots of record.

6. Public street and utility construction and installation is required across the full
frontage of property at time of development.

7. Requirements for sidewalk, curb and gutter construction may be applicable as set
forth in Elko City Code Section 8-21-3.

C. Use Restrictions: The following use restrictions shall apply:

1. Principal Uses: Only those uses and groups of uses specifically designated as
"principal uses permitted" in zoning district regulations shall be permitted as principal
uses; all other uses shall be prohibited as principal uses.

2. Conditional Uses: Certain specified uses designated as "conditional uses permitted"
may be permitted as principal uses subject to special conditions of location, design,
construction, operation and maintenance hereinafter specified in this chapter or
imposed by the planning commission or city council.

3. Accessory Uses: Uses normally accessory and incidental to permitted principal or
conditional uses may be permitted as hereinafter specified.

4. Unspecified Uses: The listing of groups of permitted uses is intended to establish the
character of uses to be permitted, but not to include each and every use which may be



Page 3 of 9 Ord. 842

permitted. Unspecified uses may be imposed by the planning commission upon
evidence and determination that such uses are closely similar in character to and not
typically more objectionable than other uses actually listed as permitted.

5. Temporary Uses: Certain temporary uses such as interim administrative and sales
offices, sales offices for mobile and manufactured homes, model home sales complex
for residential subdivisions, materials storage, mixing, assembly, manufacturing of a
portable nature and similar uses determined to be functionally comparable, and, as
specified in this paragraph, temporary emergency shelters, temporary camping and
temporary campgrounds may be permitted by temporary use permit.

a. “Temporary emergency shelters” are defined as enclosed and unenclosed
locations, to include structures and portions of structures, used for temporary
occupancy by individuals and families who are homeless or who cannot
occupy their homes due to lack of utilities or other causes. Temporary
emergency shelters may be permitted, but only within C (General
Commercial), LI (Light Industrial) and GI (General Industrial) Zoning
Districts.

b. “Temporary Camping” means to use real property owned or occupied by
another person for living accommodation purposes for a limited period of
time outside of a structure that is affixed to the ground, to include uses such
as, without limitation, the following when done in connection with outdoor
living: (1) overnight sleeping activities or making preparations to sleep
overnight outside of a motor vehicle, recreational vehicle or trailer, such as
the laying down of bedding on the ground for the purpose of sleeping
overnight; (2) storing personal belongings outside of a structure in connection
with overnight sleeping activities; (3) cooking outdoors or making a fire for
the purpose of cooking food outdoors as approved by the city in the
temporary use permit; or (4) using any tent, shelter or other mobile structure
for sleeping overnight. “Camping” does not include using a motor vehicle,
recreational vehicle or trailer as long-term shelter, for living accommodation
purposes, or for the purpose of storage of belongings.

c. “Temporary Campground” means a designated area where people may, with
permission from the owner or occupier of the land, engage in camping for a
limited period of time and that may or may not have toilets, showers and/or
other amenities for campers to use.

d. Temporary Camping and Temporary Campgrounds may be permitted as
temporary uses, but only within LI (Light Industrial) and GI (General
Industrial) Zoning Districts.

e. For purposes of this section, “overnight” is defined as the period from one-
half hour after sunset to sunrise.

f. For purposes of this section, “living accommodation purposes” is defined as



Page 4 of 9 Ord. 842

uses and activities needed for or directly connected with the use of land for
engaging in life-sustaining activities.

g. The temporary use permit process for camping and campgrounds shall be
subject to the following public hearing process: the city shall set a time and
place for the public hearing before the planning commission on the
application and the city shall send, by mail, notice of the time and place and
purpose of the planning commission hearing, at least ten (10) days before the
hearing, to the owners of property within three hundred feet (300') of the
exterior limits of the property involved, as shown by the latest assessment
rolls of the city. Notice by mail to the last known address of the real property
owners, as shown by the Assessor's records, shall be sufficient. Legal notice
shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation within the city at least
ten (10) days prior to the date of the public hearing. Applications for
temporary use permits must be filed at least twenty-one (21) days before the
planning commission hearing.

h. Temporary use permits may be subject to such special conditions as may be
imposed by the planning commission related to time frame, location, nature
and character of the use and extent of on-siteon site improvements.
Application for a temporary use permit shall be filed with the planning
department on a form provided for such purpose and shall include payment of
a filing fee in an amount established by resolution of the city council.

6. Site Plan Review: Certain uses, structures, activities or uses requiring planning
commission review or determination, inclusive of public buildings, public structures
or other public developments such as parks, except those submitted as part of an
application for a conditional use permit or temporary use permit, may be permitted
upon formal review by the planning commission. The scope of the planning
commission's review shall be limited to location, character and extent of
improvements thereof, and shall be subject to such special conditions, relative to the
defined scope of review, as may be imposed by the planning commission. Application
for site plan review shall be filed with the planning department on a form provided for
such purpose and shall include payment of a filing fee in an amount established by
resolution of the city council.

D. Site Unsuitability: No land may be used or structure erected where the land is held by the
planning commission to be unsuitable for such use or structure by reason of flooding,
concentrated runoff, inadequate drainage, adverse soil or rock formation, extreme
topography, low bearing strength, erosion susceptibility, or any other features likely to be
harmful to the health, safety and general welfare of the community. The planning
commission, in applying the provisions of this section, shall state in writing the particular
facts upon which its conclusions are based. The applicant shall have the right to present
evidence contesting such determination to the city council if he or she so desires,
whereupon the city council may affirm, modify or withdraw the determination of
unsuitability.



Page 5 of 9 Ord. 842

E. Reduction Or or Joint Use: No lot, yard, parking or loading area, building area, or other
space, nor any part thereof, hereinafter required about or in connection with any building,
shall be included as part of a yard area or space required for any other building, nor shall
any yard or lot existing on the effective date hereof be reduced in dimension or area
below the minimum requirements set forth in this title.

F. Building Height Regulations: No building shall exceed the heights allowed in the current
city of Elko airport master plan.

G. Projections Intointo Required Yards; Residential Districts:

1. Awnings, open fire balconies, fire escape stairs, window type refrigeration units not
exceeding one and one-half (11/2) tons or one and one-half (11/2) horsepower rating,
suspended or roof evaporative coolers, and forced air furnaces, may project not more
than five feet (5') over any required yard; provided, that they shall be no closer than
two feet (2') to any lot line.

2. Cornices and eaves may project over any required yard, provided, that they shall be no
closer than two feet (2') to any lot line.

3. Sills, belt courses and similar ornamental features may project not more than six
inches (6") over or into any required yard.

4. Unroofed terraces, patios, steps or similar features may project into any required yard;
provided, that projections into required front yards shall not exceed ten feet (10').
Roofed or covered terraces, patios, steps or similar features may project into the
required rear yard no closer than ten feet (10') to the rear lot line, provided two (2)
sides of the covered feature remain open.

5. Fireplaces may be allowed to encroach into required yards no closer than two feet (2')
to any lot line.

6. Carports may be allowed to encroach into required side yards; provided, that two (2)
sides of the carport remain open, that no portion of the carport structure be closer than
three feet (3') to any side lot line, and all drainage from the roof of the structure shall
be onto the property itself.

H. Exterior Lighting: All lighting for advertising off street parking or loading areas, or for
the external illumination of buildings, shall be directed away from and shielded from any
adjacent residential district and shall not detract from driver visibility on adjacent streets
or highways, interfere with or cause driver confusion regarding traffic control devices,
interfere with driver vision or create other traffic hazards.

I. Essential Services Permitted: Nothing in this chapter shall prevent the location, erection,
construction, alteration or maintenance by a public utility of any "essential services", as
herein defined.



Page 6 of 9 Ord. 842

J. Required Screen Walls: Under certain conditions, the planning commission may
recommend that the city council require screen walls to separate incompatible uses; e.g.,
separation of abutting or industrial uses and residential uses. Such wall shall be
constructed by the developer and approved by the city engineer or planning commission.

K. Nonrequired Fences, Walls And and Hedges:

1. No fence, wall, tree, shrub or hedge may be allowed which would obstruct vision at
street intersections in any residential district.

2. No fence or wall shall contain barbed wire, concertina razor wire, electrical current or
charge of electricity, broken glass, or similar hazardous materials or devices;
provided, however, that fences enclosing storage areas in industrial or commercial
districts may use barbed wire extension arms on chainlink fences six feet (6') or
higher, or may use concertina razor wire extension arms on chainlink fences seven
feet (7') or higher. In addition, fences enclosing storage areas in industrial or
commercial districts may use concertina razor wire extension arms on chainlink
fences between six feet (6') and seven feet (7') in height so long as the concertina
razor wire extension arm does not protrude more than six inches (6") out from the
exterior vertical extension of the chainlink fence.

3. No nonbuilding wall or fence in any residential district shall exceed six feet (6') in
height without a building permit.

L. Trash Enclosures: A permanent enclosure for temporary storage of garbage, refuse and
other waste materials shall be provided for every use other than single-family dwellings in
every zoning district, except where an approved mechanically loaded steel bin is used for
the purpose, or where a property is entirely surrounded by screen walls or buildings.
Trash enclosures shall be so constructed that contents are not visible from a height of five
feet (5') above grade on any abutting street or property.

M. Swimming Pools: Swimming pools, whether private, public or commercial, shall comply
with the laws, rules and regulations of the city and state.

N. Signs: The provisions of the sign code as set forth in chapter 9 of this title shall apply.

O. Building And and Electrical Codes: In all construction hereafter made within the city, the
same shall be in accordance with title 2, chapters 2 and 6 of this code, and all other
applicable provisions of this code.

P. Mobile Homes: Mobile homes are hereby expressly prohibited for living purposes outside
the RMH district, except as stated in other chapters of this title. All requirements of
chapter 5 of this title and all other applicable provisions of this code shall be adhered to
with respect to standards for the RMH district.

Q. Manufactured Homes: Notwithstanding any other provisions in this code, manufactured
homes are hereby recognized as a "principal permitted use" in all zoning districts which



Page 7 of 9 Ord. 842

recognize single-family dwellings as a "principal permitted use", provided all of the
following standards are complied with:

1. The manufactured home shall be placed on a foundation permanently affixed to the
residential lot and qualify and constitute real property, as established by Nevada
Revised Statutes chapter 361.

2. The manufactured home shall be manufactured within the five (5) years immediately
preceding the date on which it is affixed to the residential lot.

3. The manufactured home shall utilize exterior siding consisting of or giving the
appearance of stucco, masonry, wood, metal or vinyl and affixed to the dwelling unit
in a continuous horizontal or vertical pattern similar in color, material and appearance
to the exterior siding used on other single-family dwellings in the immediate vicinity.

4. The manufactured home shall utilize roofing materials consisting of asphalt shingles
or equivalent roofing materials of comparable quality, similar in color, material and
appearance to the roofing used on other single-family dwellings in the immediate
vicinity. The manufactured home shall utilize a full height roof element with a
minimum pitch of three to twelve (3:12). The roof element shall include a minimum
overhang or projecting eave of twelve inches (12").

5. The manufactured home shall be multisectioned (doublewide or larger) with a
minimum width or minimum depth of twenty fourtwenty-four feet (24').

6. The manufactured home shall consist of at least one thousand two hundred (1,200)
square feet of living area. A waiver can be filed and may be granted for a reduction of
the living area based on the size or configuration of the lot or the square footage of
single-family residential dwellings in the immediate vicinity, in accordance with site
plan review procedures pursuant to subsection C6 of this section.

7. Any elevated foundations shall be masked architecturally in a manner to blend and
harmonize with exterior siding materials utilized on the manufactured home.

8. As provided in Nevada Revised Statutes, the provisions of this section do not
abrogate recorded restrictive covenants prohibiting manufactured homes, nor do the
provisions apply within the boundaries of a historic district established pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes section 384.005 or 384.100. An application to place a
manufactured home on a residential lot pursuant to this section constitutes an
attestation by the owner of the lot that the placement complies with all covenants,
conditions and restrictions placed on the lot and that the lot is not located within a
historic district.

R. Minimum Distance Between Residential Establishments: A minimum distance of at least
one thousand three hundred twenty feet (1,320') shall be required between residential
establishments. A residential establishment is defined in Nevada Revised Statutes section
278.02384 as:



Page 8 of 9 Ord. 842

"Residential establishment means (1) a home for individual residential care in a
community whose population is 100,000 or more, (2) a halfway house for recovering
alcohol and drug abusers or (3) a residential facility for groups".

1. The definition of "individual residential care" is not applicable as the population of
Elko County is less than one hundred thousand (100,000).

2. "Halfway house for recovering alcohol and drug abusers" is defined in Nevada
Revised Statutes section 449.008 as:

"Halfway house for recovering alcohol and drug abusers means a residence that
provides housing and a living environment for alcohol and drug abusers and is
operated to facilitate their reintegration into the community, but does not provide
treatment for alcohol or drug abuse. The term does not include a facility for the
treatment of abuse of alcohol or drugs as defined in Nevada Revised Statutes section
449.00455".

3. "Residential facility for groups" is defined in Nevada Revised Statutes section
449.017 as:

"Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, residential facility for groups means
an establishment that furnishes food, shelter assistance and limited supervision to an
aged, infirm, mentally retarded or handicapped person. The term does include:

a. An establishment which provides care only during the day;

b. A natural person who provides care for no more than two (2) persons in his own
home;

c. A natural person who provides care for one or more persons related to him within
the third degree of consanguinity or affinity;

d. A halfway house for alcohol and drug abusers; or
e. A facility funded by a division or program of the department of human resources."

S. As As-Built Drawing: Except for the new construction of a single-family dwelling, prior
to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for any new construction, the applicant must
submit to the city a complete and accurate as built drawing with survey data on the Elko
grid (NAD 83 Nevada east zone ground elevation). The as built drawing must be
submitted electronically in AutoCAD format and must be accompanied by a wet stamped
and signed paper copy by the professional of record for the project. As used herein, the
term "as built drawing" means a drawing that accurately depicts the locations of all
improvements on the parcel or lot containing the new construction and any associated
utilities or other public improvements constructed on other properties, which drawing
shall, without limitation, include the structure(s) and all associated utilities and other
public improvements.



Page 9 of 9 Ord. 842

SECTION 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but
only to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 3. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall
not affect any remaining provision of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this
ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilpersons voting for or against its
passage in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one
publication.

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned, unless
otherwise stated.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this --th day of ---, 2019 by the following vote of the Elko City
Council.

VOTE:

AYES:

NAYES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

CITY OF ELKO

By:__________________________________
REECE KEENER, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk



Agenda Item # I.B.1. 

Created on 6/12/2019  Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 8-19, filed by Copper 

Trails, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Copper Trails Phase 2 – 

Unit 1 involving the proposed division of approximately 19.194 acres of property 

into 9 lots and 1 remainder parcel for residential development within the R (Single 

Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related 

thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  July 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: MISC. ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND COMMUNICATIONS  

 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Subject property is located at the intersection of Mittry 

Avenue and Copper Street. (APN 001-610-114) 

 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application and Staff Report 

 

8. Recommended Motion: Recommend that the City Council accept, on behalf of the 

public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with 

the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with 

the tentative map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install 

improvements in accordance with the approved construction plans that satisfies the 

requirements of this Chapter, and conditionally approve Final Map 8-19 with 

findings and conditions listed in the Staff Report dated June 12, 2019. 

 

9. Findings: See Staff Report dated June 12, 2019 

 

10. Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Copper Trails LLC 

207 Brookwood Drive 

Elko, NV 89801 

elkoluke@gmail.com 

 

Carter Engineering 

lanalcarter@live.com 

 

 





Page 1 of 8

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

REPORT DATE: June 12, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: July 2, 2019
AGENDA ITEM NUMBER: I.B.1
APPLICATION NUMBER: Final Map 8-19
APPLICANT: Copper Trails, LLC
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

A Final Map for the division of approximately 2.235 acres into 9 lots for single family
residential development within an R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential)
zoning district and 1 remainder lot.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND CONDITIONAL APPROVAL, subject to findings of fact, and conditions as stated
in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



Final Map 8-19
Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

Page 2 of 8

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-114

PARCEL SIZE: 2.235 Acres

EXISTING ZONING: (R) Single Family and Multiple Family Residential.

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density

EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant

BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Plat for Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1 has been presented before expiration of
the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the overall Copper Trails Tentative Map.

3. The City Council conditionally approved the overall Copper Trails Tentative Map.
4. Phasing was shown on the overall Tentative Map, and Phase 2 was originally planned to

be built out as a whole.  However, the applicant is now submitting and recording Phase 2
in smaller portions due to market concerns.

5. Under the conditional approval of the Tentative Map, a modification of standards was
granted for all lot dimensions.

6. The subdivision is located on APN 001-610-114.
7. The proposed subdivision consists of 9 lots.
8. The total subdivided area is approximately 2.235 acres.
9. The proposed density is 4.03 units per acre.
10. Approximately 0.524 acres are offered for dedication for street development.
11. Approximately 0.972 acres are offered for dedication for drainage purposes.
12. The property is located on the north side of the intersection of Mittry Avenue and Copper

Street.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:
 Northwest: Single and Multiple Family (R) / Vacant (Future portion of Phase 2)
 Northeast: Single and Multiple Family (R) / Vacant
 Southwest: Single and Multiple Family (R) / Developed (Copper Trails Phase 1)
 Southeast:  Single and Multiple Family (R) / Vacant

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

 The property is an undeveloped Single and Multiple Family (R) parcel.
 The area abuts the first phase of Copper Trails.
 The parcel has some slope to it, which is incorporated into the design of the lots where

possible.



Final Map 8-19
Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

Page 3 of 8

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

 City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
 City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
 City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
 City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-3 General Provisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-4 Establishment of Zoning Districts
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(E) Single-Family and Multiple Family Residential

District
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-5(G) Residential Zoning Districts Area, Setback, and

Height
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-2-17 Traffic, Access, Parking and Loading Regulations
 City of Elko Zoning – Chapter 3 Subdivisions
 City of Elko Zoning – Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map.  The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

A portion of the property is located within the 30-year capture zone for Well #15. The sanitary
sewer will be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street drainage will be directed to
a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE III):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) – The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.  A modification of standards for the lot dimensions was granted with the
conditional approval of the Tentative Map.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) – The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.



Final Map 8-19
Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

Page 4 of 8

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content – The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,

township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.

C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of

the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data

1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.

2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the

Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The location of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required

information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.

E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements

and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a

notary public.
F. Additional Information

1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine

the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is not located adjacent to a city boundary, so no boundaries are

shown.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.

G. City to Check
1. Closure calculations have been provided.  Civil improvement plans have been

approved.  Drainage plans have been approved.  An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.

2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications



Final Map 8-19
Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

Page 5 of 8

1. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right of ways shown on the Final

Map.
3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City

Council.
4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final

Map.
5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required

language.
6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided

with the required language.
8. A copy of the review by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection for

Phase 2 as a whole has been received.  The engineer of record has resubmitted the
Phase 2, Unit 1 plans to the state, but no written approval has been received.

9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map
with the required language.

10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process. A Modification of Standards for lot dimensions was approved
during that process.

Based on the Modification of Standards for lot dimension granted under the Tentative Map
application, the proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code.  The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
permits in accordance with this section of City code.



Final Map 8-19
Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

Page 6 of 8

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as paving and utilities within the
Mittry Avenue, Platinum Drive, and Quartz Drive right-of-ways.

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process. A Modification of Standards for lot dimensions was approved
during that process.

Based on the Modification of Standards for lot dimensions granted under the Tentative Map
application, the proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).

FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1 has been presented before expiration of
the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the Master
Plan.

4. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

5. Based on the Modification of Standards for lot dimensions granted under the Tentative
Map application, the proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16
(inclusive)



Final Map 8-19
Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

Page 7 of 8

6. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

9. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.

10. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

11. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance Guarantee as stipulated in the
Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City code.

12. Based on the Modification of Standards for lot dimensions granted under the Tentative
Map application, the proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E),
3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 of City code.

13. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance Agreement in accordance with Section 3-3-
21 of City code.  The Performance Agreement shall be secured in accordance with
Section 3-3-22 of City code.  In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of City code, the
public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two (2) years of
the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as stipulated in City
code.

2. The Performance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

3. The Developer shall enter into the Performance Agreement within 30 days of approval of
the Final Map by the City Council.

4. The Final Map for Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1 is approved for nine (9) single family
residential lots.

5. The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

6. Construction, with the exception of grading, shall not commence prior to Final Map
approval by the City Council, issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko, and
approval of construction plans by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.



Final Map 8-19
Copper Trails Phase 2, Unit 1

Page 8 of 8

7. Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

8. The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works.  All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.



















































‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 1

   North: 10391.4162          East : 10352.4436      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 79.43           
        North: 10332.3887            East : 10299.2940      
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00      
        Delta: 90‐00‐00            Tangent: 15.00           
        Chord: 21.21                Course: S 87‐00‐02 W
    Course In: N 47‐59‐58 W     Course Out: S 42‐00‐02 W
    RP  North: 10342.4258            East : 10288.1469      
    End North: 10331.2787            East : 10278.1099      
Line  Course: N 47‐59‐58 W  Length: 60.01           
        North: 10371.4337            East : 10233.5141      
Curve  Length: 23.36                Radius: 15.00      
        Delta: 89‐14‐33            Tangent: 14.80           
        Chord: 21.07                Course: N 03‐22‐41 W
    Course In: N 42‐00‐02 E     Course Out: N 48‐45‐25 W
    RP  North: 10382.5808            East : 10243.5512      
    End North: 10392.4696            East : 10232.2724      
Curve  Length: 43.53                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 19‐57‐06            Tangent: 21.99           
        Chord: 43.31                Course: N 31‐16‐02 E
    Course In: N 48‐45‐25 W     Course Out: S 68‐42‐31 E
    RP  North: 10474.8764            East : 10138.2824      
    End North: 10429.4875            East : 10254.7507      
Line  Course: S 68‐42‐31 E  Length: 104.85          
        North: 10391.4153            East : 10352.4442      

   Perimeter: 334.75   Area: 7,001 S.F. 0.161 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0011               Course: S 33‐10‐14 E
  Error North: ‐0.00090              East : 0.00059         
Precision  1: 304,309.09      

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 2

   North: 10272.9379          East : 10245.7631      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 96.87           
        North: 10200.9500            East : 10180.9438      
Line  Course: N 20‐10‐38 W  Length: 118.10          
        North: 10311.8023            East : 10140.2081      
Curve  Length: 45.85                Radius: 125.00     



        Delta: 21‐01‐00            Tangent: 23.19           
        Chord: 45.59                Course: N 59‐18‐52 E
    Course In: N 20‐10‐38 W     Course Out: S 41‐11‐38 E
    RP  North: 10429.1311            East : 10097.0925      
    End North: 10335.0704            East : 10179.4186      
Curve  Length: 21.78                Radius: 15.00      
        Delta: 83‐11‐40            Tangent: 13.32           
        Chord: 19.92                Course: S 89‐35‐48 E
    Course In: S 41‐11‐38 E     Course Out: N 42‐00‐02 E
    RP  North: 10323.7831            East : 10189.2978      
    End North: 10334.9302            East : 10199.3348      
Line  Course: S 47‐59‐58 E  Length: 60.99           
        North: 10294.1195            East : 10244.6588      
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00      
        Delta: 90‐00‐00            Tangent: 15.00           
        Chord: 21.21                Course: S 02‐59‐58 E
    Course In: S 42‐00‐02 W     Course Out: S 47‐59‐58 E
    RP  North: 10282.9724            East : 10234.6218      
    End North: 10272.9353            East : 10245.7689      

   Perimeter: 367.15   Area: 8,173 S.F. 0.188 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0062               Course: S 66‐15‐45 E
  Error North: ‐0.00251              East : 0.00570         
Precision  1: 59,217.74       

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 3

   North: 10200.9480          East : 10180.9419      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 120.41          
        North: 10111.4667            East : 10100.3710      
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 40.65           
        North: 10138.6488            East : 10070.1460      
Line  Course: N 05‐17‐56 E  Length: 166.73          
        North: 10304.6663            East : 10085.5437      
Curve  Length: 55.58                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 25‐28‐34            Tangent: 28.26           
        Chord: 55.12                Course: N 82‐33‐39 E
    Course In: N 05‐17‐56 E     Course Out: S 20‐10‐38 E
    RP  North: 10429.1321            East : 10097.0876      
    End North: 10311.8033            East : 10140.2032      
Line  Course: S 20‐10‐38 E  Length: 118.10          
        North: 10200.9511            East : 10180.9389      

   Perimeter: 501.47   Area: 14,226 S.F. 0.327 ACRES



Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0043               Course: N 43‐50‐54 W
  Error North: 0.00313               East : ‐0.00301        
Precision  1: 116,620.93      

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 4

   North: 10304.6652          East : 10085.5454      
Line  Course: S 05‐17‐56 W  Length: 166.73          
        North: 10138.6477            East : 10070.1477      
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 124.98          
        North: 10222.2202            East : 9977.2196       
Line  Course: N 82‐17‐04 W  Length: 25.42           
        North: 10225.6330            East : 9952.0297       
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐58 E  Length: 126.53          
        North: 10319.7132            East : 10036.6392      
Curve  Length: 51.53                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 23‐37‐11            Tangent: 26.14           
        Chord: 51.17                Course: S 72‐53‐29 E
    Course In: N 28‐55‐07 E     Course Out: S 05‐17‐56 W
    RP  North: 10429.1266            East : 10097.0850      
    End North: 10304.6608            East : 10085.5411      

   Perimeter: 495.19   Area: 12,427 S.F. 0.285 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0061               Course: S 44‐31‐13 W
  Error North: ‐0.00437              East : ‐0.00429        
Precision  1: 81,178.69       

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 5

   North: 10319.7175          East : 10036.6435      
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐58 W  Length: 126.53          
        North: 10225.6373            East : 9952.0340       
Line  Course: N 82‐17‐04 W  Length: 10.12           
        North: 10226.9960            East : 9942.0056       
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐57 E  Length: 4.00            
        North: 10229.9702            East : 9944.6804       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 59.64           
        North: 10269.8507            East : 9900.3354       
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐58 E  Length: 125.00          
        North: 10362.7932            East : 9983.9218       
Line  Course: S 48‐02‐03 E  Length: 39.78           



        North: 10336.1929            East : 10013.5000      
Curve  Length: 28.46                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 13‐02‐50            Tangent: 14.29           
        Chord: 28.40                Course: S 54‐33‐28 E
    Course In: N 41‐57‐57 E     Course Out: S 28‐55‐07 W
    RP  North: 10429.1358            East : 10097.0859      
    End North: 10319.7224            East : 10036.6401      

   Perimeter: 393.53   Area: 8,540 S.F. 0.196 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0060               Course: N 35‐07‐46 W
  Error North: 0.00488               East : ‐0.00343        
Precision  1: 65,588.33       

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 6

   North: 10362.7889          East : 9983.9247       
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐58 W  Length: 125.00          
        North: 10269.8463            East : 9900.3383       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 40.36           
        North: 10296.8345            East : 9870.3289       
Line  Course: N 46‐54‐23 W  Length: 9.64            
        North: 10303.4205            East : 9863.2894       
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐58 E  Length: 129.50          
        North: 10399.7090            East : 9949.8849       
Curve  Length: 46.02                Radius: 225.00     
        Delta: 11‐43‐08            Tangent: 23.09           
        Chord: 45.94                Course: S 42‐10‐29 E
    Course In: N 53‐41‐05 E     Course Out: S 41‐57‐57 W
    RP  North: 10532.9603            East : 10131.1832      
    End North: 10365.6630            East : 9980.7285       
Line  Course: S 48‐02‐03 E  Length: 4.30            
        North: 10362.7876            East : 9983.9258       
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐01 W  Length: 0.00            
        North: 10362.7876            East : 9983.9258       

   Perimeter: 354.82   Area: 6,320 S.F. 0.145 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0017               Course: S 41‐40‐08 E
  Error North: ‐0.00125              East : 0.00111         
Precision  1: 208,717.65      

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐



Parcel name: Lot 7

   North: 10525.3293          East : 10051.2260      
Line  Course: S 44‐00‐35 E  Length: 50.12           
        North: 10489.2819            East : 10086.0484      
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐58 W  Length: 112.29          
        North: 10405.7898            East : 10010.9611      
Curve  Length: 50.91                Radius: 175.00     
        Delta: 16‐40‐09            Tangent: 25.64           
        Chord: 50.73                Course: N 38‐16‐34 W
    Course In: N 43‐23‐22 E     Course Out: S 60‐03‐31 W
    RP  North: 10532.9625            East : 10131.1779      
    End North: 10445.6176            East : 9979.5341       
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐58 E  Length: 107.21          
        North: 10525.3325            East : 10051.2244      
Line  Course: S 52‐03‐09 E  Length: 0.00            
        North: 10525.3325            East : 10051.2244      

   Perimeter: 320.53   Area: 5,550 S.F. 0.127 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0036               Course: N 25‐40‐53 W
  Error North: 0.00321               East : ‐0.00154        
Precision  1: 89,036.11       

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 8

   North: 10489.2793          East : 10086.0508      
Line  Course: S 44‐00‐35 E  Length: 57.14           
        North: 10448.1830            East : 10125.7506      
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐58 W  Length: 107.84          
        North: 10367.9996            East : 10053.6390      
Curve  Length: 8.59                 Radius: 75.00      
        Delta: 6‐33‐45             Tangent: 4.30            
        Chord: 8.59                 Course: N 51‐18‐55 W
    Course In: N 35‐24‐12 E     Course Out: S 41‐57‐57 W
    RP  North: 10429.1317            East : 10097.0886      
    End North: 10373.3659            East : 10046.9371      
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 44.08           
        North: 10402.8416            East : 10014.1617      
Curve  Length: 4.35                 Radius: 175.00     
        Delta: 1‐25‐25             Tangent: 2.17            
        Chord: 4.35                 Course: N 47‐19‐21 W
    Course In: N 41‐57‐57 E     Course Out: S 43‐23‐22 W
    RP  North: 10532.9618            East : 10131.1819      
    End North: 10405.7890            East : 10010.9650      
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐58 E  Length: 112.29          



        North: 10489.2812            East : 10086.0524      

   Perimeter: 334.29   Area: 6,288 S.F. 0.144 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0024               Course: N 39‐03‐05 E
  Error North: 0.00186               East : 0.00151         
Precision  1: 139,287.50      

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Lot 9

   North: 10448.1824          East : 10125.7512      
Line  Course: S 48‐02‐31 E  Length: 66.45           
        North: 10403.7548            East : 10175.1657      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 33.39           
        North: 10378.9414            East : 10152.8232      
Curve  Length: 109.17               Radius: 75.00      
        Delta: 83‐24‐10            Tangent: 66.83           
        Chord: 99.79                Course: S 83‐42‐07 W
    Course In: N 47‐59‐58 W     Course Out: S 35‐24‐12 W
    RP  North: 10429.1267            East : 10097.0878      
    End North: 10367.9947            East : 10053.6382      
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐58 E  Length: 107.84          
        North: 10448.1781            East : 10125.7498      
Line  Course: S 48‐21‐59 E  Length: 0.00            
        North: 10448.1781            East : 10125.7498      

   Perimeter: 316.85   Area: 5,991 S.F. 0.138 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0045               Course: S 18‐01‐05 W
  Error North: ‐0.00427              East : ‐0.00139        
Precision  1: 70,411.11       

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Parcel H

   North: 10493.1657          East : 10444.0611      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 136.92          
        North: 10391.4152            East : 10352.4427      
Line  Course: N 68‐42‐31 W  Length: 154.85          
        North: 10447.6430            East : 10208.1619      
Curve  Length: 27.11                Radius: 75.00      
        Delta: 20‐42‐33            Tangent: 13.70           
        Chord: 26.96                Course: S 31‐38‐46 W



    Course In: N 68‐42‐31 W     Course Out: S 47‐59‐58 E
    RP  North: 10474.8763            East : 10138.2810      
    End North: 10424.6910            East : 10194.0163      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 28.17           
        North: 10403.7568            East : 10175.1667      
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐31 W  Length: 66.45           
        North: 10448.1844            East : 10125.7522      
Line  Course: N 44‐00‐35 W  Length: 107.26          
        North: 10525.3281            East : 10051.2301      
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐58 W  Length: 107.21          
        North: 10445.6131            East : 9979.5397       
Curve  Length: 0.99                 Radius: 175.00     
        Delta: 0‐19‐32             Tangent: 0.50            
        Chord: 0.99                 Course: N 29‐46‐43 W
    Course In: N 60‐03‐31 E     Course Out: S 60‐23‐03 W
    RP  North: 10532.9580            East : 10131.1836      
    End North: 10446.4762            East : 9979.0459       
Line  Course: S 60‐23‐03 W  Length: 50.00           
        North: 10421.7671            East : 9935.5779       
Curve  Length: 26.31                Radius: 225.00     
        Delta: 6‐41‐58             Tangent: 13.17           
        Chord: 26.29                Course: S 32‐57‐56 E
    Course In: N 60‐23‐03 E     Course Out: S 53‐41‐05 W
    RP  North: 10532.9580            East : 10131.1836      
    End North: 10399.7067            East : 9949.8852       
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐58 W  Length: 129.50          
        North: 10303.4182            East : 9863.2898       
Line  Course: N 46‐54‐23 W  Length: 62.71           
        North: 10346.2612            East : 9817.4965       
Line  Course: N 16‐43‐43 W  Length: 151.21          
        North: 10491.0719            East : 9773.9724       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐02 W  Length: 485.81          
        North: 10815.9286            East : 9412.7530       
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐57 W  Length: 84.00           
        North: 10753.4709            East : 9356.5833       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 28.71           
        North: 10772.6689            East : 9335.2361       
Line  Course: S 41‐32‐17 W  Length: 130.00          
        North: 10675.3619            East : 9249.0309       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 196.91          
        North: 10807.0332            East : 9102.6197       
Line  Course: N 84‐54‐21 W  Length: 150.85          
        North: 10820.4276            East : 8952.3655       
Line  Course: N 31‐27‐48 E  Length: 877.64          
        North: 11569.0320            East : 9410.4522       
Line  Course: S 53‐50‐57 E  Length: 274.79          
        North: 11406.9298            East : 9632.3360       
Line  Course: S 34‐26‐44 E  Length: 476.75          
        North: 11013.7712            East : 9901.9967       
Line  Course: S 46‐09‐24 E  Length: 751.58          



        North: 10493.1601            East : 10444.0637      

   Perimeter: 4505.73   Area: 738,745 S.F. 16.959 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0062               Course: S 24‐50‐48 E
  Error North: ‐0.00559              East : 0.00259         
Precision  1: 726,730.65      

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Parcel name: Streets

   North: 10447.6447          East : 10208.1619      
Line  Course: S 68‐42‐31 E  Length: 50.00           
        North: 10429.4892            East : 10254.7492      
Curve  Length: 43.53                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 19‐57‐06            Tangent: 21.99           
        Chord: 43.31                Course: S 31‐16‐02 W
    Course In: N 68‐42‐31 W     Course Out: S 48‐45‐25 E
    RP  North: 10474.8781            East : 10138.2810      
    End North: 10392.4712            East : 10232.2710      
Curve  Length: 23.36                Radius: 15.00      
        Delta: 89‐14‐33            Tangent: 14.80           
        Chord: 21.07                Course: S 03‐22‐41 E
    Course In: S 48‐45‐25 E     Course Out: S 42‐00‐02 W
    RP  North: 10382.5824            East : 10243.5498      
    End North: 10371.4353            East : 10233.5127      
Line  Course: S 47‐59‐58 E  Length: 60.01           
        North: 10331.2804            East : 10278.1084      
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00      
        Delta: 90‐00‐00            Tangent: 15.00           
        Chord: 21.21                Course: N 87‐00‐02 E
    Course In: N 42‐00‐02 E     Course Out: S 47‐59‐58 E
    RP  North: 10342.4274            East : 10288.1455      
    End North: 10332.3904            East : 10299.2926      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 40.00           
        North: 10302.6648            East : 10272.5271      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 40.00           
        North: 10272.9393            East : 10245.7616      
Curve  Length: 23.56                Radius: 15.00      
        Delta: 90‐00‐00            Tangent: 15.00           
        Chord: 21.21                Course: N 02‐59‐58 W
    Course In: N 47‐59‐58 W     Course Out: N 42‐00‐02 E
    RP  North: 10282.9764            East : 10234.6145      
    End North: 10294.1235            East : 10244.6515      
Line  Course: N 47‐59‐58 W  Length: 60.99           
        North: 10334.9342            East : 10199.3275      
Curve  Length: 21.78                Radius: 15.00      



        Delta: 83‐11‐40            Tangent: 13.32           
        Chord: 19.92                Course: N 89‐35‐48 W
    Course In: S 42‐00‐02 W     Course Out: N 41‐11‐38 W
    RP  North: 10323.7871            East : 10189.2905      
    End North: 10335.0744            East : 10179.4113      
Curve  Length: 45.85                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 21‐01‐00            Tangent: 23.19           
        Chord: 45.59                Course: S 59‐18‐52 W
    Course In: N 41‐11‐38 W     Course Out: S 20‐10‐38 E
    RP  North: 10429.1350            East : 10097.0852      
    End North: 10311.8062            East : 10140.2008      
Curve  Length: 55.58                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 25‐28‐34            Tangent: 28.26           
        Chord: 55.12                Course: S 82‐33‐39 W
    Course In: N 20‐10‐38 W     Course Out: S 05‐17‐56 W
    RP  North: 10429.1350            East : 10097.0852      
    End North: 10304.6692            East : 10085.5413      
Curve  Length: 51.53                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 23‐37‐11            Tangent: 26.14           
        Chord: 51.17                Course: N 72‐53‐29 W
    Course In: N 05‐17‐56 E     Course Out: S 28‐55‐07 W
    RP  North: 10429.1350            East : 10097.0852      
    End North: 10319.7216            East : 10036.6393      
Curve  Length: 28.46                Radius: 125.00     
        Delta: 13‐02‐50            Tangent: 14.29           
        Chord: 28.40                Course: N 54‐33‐28 W
    Course In: N 28‐55‐07 E     Course Out: S 41‐57‐57 W
    RP  North: 10429.1350            East : 10097.0852      
    End North: 10336.1921            East : 10013.4993      
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 39.78           
        North: 10362.7924            East : 9983.9211       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 4.30            
        North: 10365.6678            East : 9980.7239       
Curve  Length: 46.02                Radius: 225.00     
        Delta: 11‐43‐08            Tangent: 23.09           
        Chord: 45.94                Course: N 42‐10‐29 W
    Course In: N 41‐57‐57 E     Course Out: S 53‐41‐05 W
    RP  North: 10532.9651            East : 10131.1785      
    End North: 10399.7138            East : 9949.8802       
Curve  Length: 26.31                Radius: 225.00     
        Delta: 6‐41‐58             Tangent: 13.17           
        Chord: 26.29                Course: N 32‐57‐56 W
    Course In: N 53‐41‐05 E     Course Out: S 60‐23‐03 W
    RP  North: 10532.9651            East : 10131.1785      
    End North: 10421.7741            East : 9935.5729       
Line  Course: N 60‐23‐03 E  Length: 50.00           
        North: 10446.4833            East : 9979.0408       
Curve  Length: 0.99                 Radius: 175.00     
        Delta: 0‐19‐32             Tangent: 0.50            
        Chord: 0.99                 Course: S 29‐46‐43 E



    Course In: N 60‐23‐03 E     Course Out: S 60‐03‐31 W
    RP  North: 10532.9651            East : 10131.1785      
    End North: 10445.6202            East : 9979.5346       
Curve  Length: 50.91                Radius: 175.00     
        Delta: 16‐40‐09            Tangent: 25.64           
        Chord: 50.73                Course: S 38‐16‐34 E
    Course In: N 60‐03‐31 E     Course Out: S 43‐23‐22 W
    RP  North: 10532.9651            East : 10131.1785      
    End North: 10405.7924            East : 10010.9616      
Curve  Length: 4.35                 Radius: 175.00     
        Delta: 1‐25‐25             Tangent: 2.17            
        Chord: 4.35                 Course: S 47‐19‐21 E
    Course In: N 43‐23‐22 E     Course Out: S 41‐57‐57 W
    RP  North: 10532.9651            East : 10131.1785      
    End North: 10402.8450            East : 10014.1582      
Line  Course: S 48‐02‐03 E  Length: 44.08           
        North: 10373.3692            East : 10046.9336      
Curve  Length: 8.59                 Radius: 75.00      
        Delta: 6‐33‐45             Tangent: 4.30            
        Chord: 8.59                 Course: S 51‐18‐55 E
    Course In: N 41‐57‐57 E     Course Out: S 35‐24‐12 W
    RP  North: 10429.1350            East : 10097.0852      
    End North: 10368.0030            East : 10053.6355      
Curve  Length: 109.17               Radius: 75.00      
        Delta: 83‐24‐10            Tangent: 66.83           
        Chord: 99.79                Course: N 83‐42‐07 E
    Course In: N 35‐24‐12 E     Course Out: S 47‐59‐58 E
    RP  North: 10429.1350            East : 10097.0852      
    End North: 10378.9497            East : 10152.8206      
Line  Course: N 42‐00‐02 E  Length: 33.39           
        North: 10403.7631            East : 10175.1631      
Line  Course: N 42‐00‐02 E  Length: 28.17           
        North: 10424.6973            East : 10194.0127      
Curve  Length: 27.11                Radius: 75.00      
        Delta: 20‐42‐33            Tangent: 13.70           
        Chord: 26.96                Course: N 31‐38‐46 E
    Course In: N 47‐59‐58 W     Course Out: S 68‐42‐31 E
    RP  North: 10474.8826            East : 10138.2773      
    End North: 10447.6493            East : 10208.1582      

   Perimeter: 1041.40   Area: 22,839 S.F. 0.524 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0059               Course: N 39‐09‐08 W
  Error North: 0.00455               East : ‐0.00371        
Precision  1: 176,505.08      

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐



Parcel name: Total Area

   North: 11569.0376          East : 9410.4496       
Line  Course: S 53‐50‐57 E  Length: 274.79          
        North: 11406.9354            East : 9632.3334       
Line  Course: S 34‐26‐44 E  Length: 476.75          
        North: 11013.7768            East : 9901.9941       
Line  Course: S 46‐09‐24 E  Length: 751.58          
        North: 10493.1657            East : 10444.0611      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 136.92          
        North: 10391.4152            East : 10352.4427      
Line  Course: S 42‐00‐02 W  Length: 376.71          
        North: 10111.4676            East : 10100.3718      
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 165.63          
        North: 10222.2223            East : 9977.2187       
Line  Course: N 82‐17‐04 W  Length: 35.53           
        North: 10226.9923            East : 9942.0103       
Line  Course: N 41‐57‐57 E  Length: 4.00            
        North: 10229.9665            East : 9944.6851       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 100.00          
        North: 10296.8353            East : 9870.3307       
Line  Course: N 46‐54‐23 W  Length: 72.35           
        North: 10346.2642            East : 9817.4980       
Line  Course: N 16‐43‐43 W  Length: 151.21          
        North: 10491.0748            East : 9773.9739       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐02 W  Length: 336.11          
        North: 10715.8286            East : 9524.0625       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐02 W  Length: 149.70          
        North: 10815.9316            East : 9412.7545       
Line  Course: S 41‐57‐57 W  Length: 84.00           
        North: 10753.4739            East : 9356.5847       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 28.71           
        North: 10772.6719            East : 9335.2376       
Line  Course: S 41‐32‐17 W  Length: 130.00          
        North: 10675.3649            East : 9249.0323       
Line  Course: N 48‐02‐03 W  Length: 196.91          
        North: 10807.0361            East : 9102.6211       
Line  Course: N 84‐54‐21 W  Length: 150.85          
        North: 10820.4306            East : 8952.3670       
Line  Course: N 31‐27‐48 E  Length: 877.64          
        North: 11569.0350            East : 9410.4536       

   Perimeter: 4499.39   Area: 836,100 S.F. 19.194 ACRES

Mapcheck Closure ‐ (Uses listed courses, radii, and deltas)
Error Closure: 0.0048               Course: S 57‐18‐07 E
  Error North: ‐0.00260              East : 0.00404         
Precision  1: 937,372.92      



Agenda Item # I.B.2. 

Created on 6/11/19 Planning Commission Action Sheet 

Elko City Planning Commission 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to City Council for 

Vacation No. 3-19, filed by David and Juliane Ernst, for the vacation of the 

northeasterly portion of 3rd Street, consisting of an area approximately 900 sq. ft., 

and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date:  July 2, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS, MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS, PETITIONS, AND 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The property owner is proposing to renovate the existing 

home and will be required to install curb, gutter and sidewalk as part of the permit. 

City Council accepted the petition for the vacation on June 11, 2019. CL 
 

6. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

 

7. Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, Staff Memo  

 

8. Recommended Motion: Forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a 

resolution which conditionally approves Vacation No. 3-19 based on facts, findings 

and conditions as presented in the Staff Report dated June 11, 2019. 
 

9. Findings:  See Staff Report dated June 11, 2019. 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Agenda Distribution:  Jacques Errecart 

518 Commercial Street 

Elko, NV 89801 

jacquesg518@gmail.com 

 

Juliane & David Ernst 

15530 Donnybrook Ct 

Reno, NV 89511 

 

 

 

 
  





Page 1 of 4

CITY OF ELKO STAFF REPORT

MEMO DATE: June 11, 2019
PLANNING COMMISSION DATE: July 2, 2019
APPLICATION NUMBER: Vacation 3-19
APPLICANT: David and Juliane Ernst
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: APN 001-224-009

Vacation of the northeasterly 9’x 100’ of 3rd Street.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMEND to APPROVE subject to findings of fact and conditions stated in this report.

City of Elko
1751 College Avenue

Elko, NV  89801
(775) 777-7160

FAX (775) 777-7119



VACATION 3-19
David and Juliane Ernst
APN: 001-224-009

Page 2 of 4

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-224-009

EXISTING ZONING: R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Medium Density Residential

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed, Residential

BACKGROUND:
1. The property has been developed as residential land use.
2. The property owner is proposing to renovate the home with some demolition and new

additions.
3. City Council accepted the petition for vacation at their meeting June 11, 2019 and

referred the matter to Planning Commission for their review.
4. The area proposed to be vacated is approximately 900 sq. ft.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: R-Residential / Developed
East: R-Residential / Developed
South: Commercial / Undeveloped
West: R-Residential / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is currently developed and has been vacant for many years.
The property has moderate slope to 3rd Street as well as to the southeast.
There is no sidewalk along 3rd Street and the dedicated alley to the southeast is not
developed.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive
City of Elko Master Plan – Land Use Component
City of Elko Master Plan – Transportation Component
City of Elko Redevelopment Plan
City of Elko Code – Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

MASTER PLAN – Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is a corresponding zoning district for

Medium Density Residential.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component.



VACATION 3-19
David and Juliane Ernst
APN: 001-224-009

Page 3 of 4

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

1. The area is accessed from Third Street.
2. Third Street is classified as a Residential Collectors

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

 The area is located outside the Redevelopment Area.

ELKO CITY CODE SECTION 8-7 STREET VACATION PROCEDURES

1. If it is determined by a majority vote of the city council that it is in the best interest of the
city and that no person will be materially injured thereby, the city council, by motion,
may propose the realignment, change, vacation, adjustment or abandonment of any street
or any portion thereof. In addition, any abutting owner desiring the vacation of any street
or easement or portion thereof shall file a petition in writing with the city council and the
city council shall consider said petition as set forth above.

 The City Council accepted the petition at their meeting on June 11, 2019 and
referred the matter to the Planning Commission for further consideration.

2. Except for a petition for the vacation or abandonment of an easement for a public utility
owned or controlled by the city, the petition or motion shall be referred to the planning
commission, which shall report its findings and recommendations thereon to the city
council. The petitioner shall, prior to the consideration of the petition by the planning
commission, pay a filing fee to the city in an amount established by resolution of the city
council and included in the appendix to this code.

 The filing fee was paid by the applicant.

3. Whenever any street, easement or portion thereof is proposed to be vacated or
abandoned, the city council shall notify by certified mail each owner of property abutting
the proposed vacation or abandonment and cause a notice to be published at least once in
a newspaper of general circulation in the city setting forth the extent of the proposed
vacation or abandonment and setting a date for public hearing, which date may be not
less than ten (10) days and not more than forty (40) days subsequent to the date the notice
is first published.

4. Order of City Council: Except as provided in subsection E of this section, if, upon public
hearing, the City Council is satisfied that the public will not be materially injured by the
proposed vacation or abandonment, and that it is in the best interest of the city, it shall
order the street vacated or abandoned. The city council may make the order conditional,
and the order shall become effective only upon the fulfillment of the conditions
prescribed.

The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Section 8-7 of
City code.

FINDINGS



VACATION 3-19
David and Juliane Ernst
APN: 001-224-009

Page 4 of 4

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use
Component

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component.

 The property proposed for vacation is not located within the Redevelopment Area.

 The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

 The proposed vacation with the recommended conditions is in conformance with Elko
City Code 8-7.

 The proposed vacation will not materially injure the public and is in the best interest of
the City.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends forward a recommendation to City Council to adopt a resolution which
conditionally APPROVES the proposed vacation with the following conditions:

1. The applicant is responsible for all costs associated with the recordation of the vacation.

2. Written response from all non-City utilities is on file with the City of Elko with regard to
the vacation in accordance with NRS 278.480(6) before the order is recorded.






















































































































































